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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.
Amsterdam

Report of the board of Managing Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association of ERB New Europe Funding II B.V., the Board of Managing Directors herewith submits the
Annual Report of ERB New Europe Funding Il B.V. (the Company) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Key Activities

ERB New Europe Funding II B.V. (the Company) was incorporated on April 24, 2008 and has its registered and office address at
Herengracht 500, 1017 CB, Amsterdam, The Netherlands. The Company is incorporated in The Netherlands and is wholly owned by ERB
New Europe Holding B.V., a wholly owned subsidiary of Eurobank Ergasias S.A. in Greece. On November 15, 2012 the Company changed
its name to ERB New Europe Funding II B.V. (former name: EFG New Europe Funding Il B.V.).

The key activities of the Company are to invest in loans granted to Romanian customers (originated by the group Company Bancpost $.A.)
in Romania. All loans and advances to customers are existing loans to R ian ¢ quired from the group Company Bancpost
S.A. The Company itself is funded directly by Eurobank Cyptus Ltd. in Cyprus.

Position of Eurobank Group

Macroeconomic environment

Greece’s real GDP grew by 1.4% in 2017, according to the Hellenic Statistical Authority’s (ELSTAT) first estimate from -0.02% in 2016,
while the real GDP growth consensus forecast for 2018 is at 2.1% (compared to an official target of 2.5%). The unemployment rate in
December 2017 was 20.8%, based on ELSTAT data (31 December 2016: 23.5%). On the fiscal front, Greece’s primary surplus for 2017 is
expected at 2.44% of GDP, according to the 2018 Budget data, outperforming the respective Third Economic Adjustment Program (TEAP)
primary balance target of 1.75%. According to Bank of Greece and ELSTAT data the current account deficit decreased at -0.8% of GDP in
2017 (2016: -1.1 %).

Greece, following the conclusion of the TEAP second review in June 2017 and the consequent release of the € 8.5 bn loan tranche, reached
a staff level agreement with the Europeen institutions on the policy package of the third review on 4 D ber 2017 and impl d all
prior actions by early 2018, which paved the way for the disbursement of the first sub-tranche of € 5.7 bn in the second half of March 2018.
The second sub-tranche of € 1 bn will be disbursed in the second quarter of 2018 subject to positive reporting by the European institutions
on the clearance of net arrears and the unimpeded flow of e-auctions. On the back of the aft ioned positive develop , Greece
retumned to the financial markets through the issue of a € 3 bn five-year bond at a yield of 4.625% on 24 July 2017 (for the first time since
July 2014) and a € 3 bn seven-year bond et a yield of 3.5% on 8 February 2018. The proceeds of the bond issues are used for further
liability/debt management and for the build-up of a state cash buffer that would facilitate the country’s market access after the end of the

program in August 2018

The completion of the fourth and final review of the TEAP, which will be carried out by June 2018 ding to the impl ion plan,
an expected signifi rise in i (2018 Budget estimate at 11.4% compared to 9.6% increase in 2017), and a forecasted strong
tourism season support expectations for a further improvement in domestic economic activity in 2018. The decisive implementation of the
reforms agreed in the context of the TEAP, the implementation of further debt relief measures in accordance with 24 May 2016 Eurogroup
decisions, the mobilization of European Union (EU) funding to support domestic investment and job creation, the attraction of foreign and
domestic capital and the adoption of an extrovert economic development model will facilitate the restoration of confidence in the prospects
of the Greek economy and the further stebilization of the domestic economic environment, which are necessary conditions for the return of
the country to a strong and sustainable growth path.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V,

Amsterdam

Report of the board of Managing Directors

Position of Eurobank Group (continued)

The main risks and uncertainties are associated with (a) the possible delays in the implementation of the reforms’ agenda in order to meet
the next targets and milestones of the TEAP, (b) the possible delays in the agreement of the post-program relation between Greece and the
Institutions, (c) the impact on the level of economic activity and on the attraction of direct investments from the fiscal and social security-
related measures agreed under the reviews of the TEAP, (d) the ability to attract new investments in the country, (¢) the timing of a full lift
of restrictions in the free movement of capital and the respective impact on the level of economic activity, (f) the possible slow pace of
deposits inflows and/ or possible delays in the effective management of non-performing exposures (NPEs) as a result of the challenging
macroeconomic eonditions in Greece and (g) the geopolitical conditions in the broader region and the external shocks from a slowdown in
the global economy.

Liquidity risk

In accordance with the agreetent with the European partners the authorities are committed to preserving sufficient liquidity in the banking
system, as long as Greece meets its obligations under the European Stability Mechanism (ESM) program. The gradual stabilisation of the
macre ic envi following the completion of the second and the third review of the TEAP, has enhanced Greece's credibility
towards the international markets, improved the domestic economic sentiment and facilitated the return of deposits as well as the further
relaxation of capital conmols. The successful completion of the fourth review of the TEAP and an agreement on the post-program relation
of Greece with its official creditors will help further reinstating depositors® confidence and thus accelerate the return of deposits, and it will
positively influence the financing of the economy.

In 2017, the Group's deposits inflows of € 1.8 bn (of which € 1.2 bn in Greece), along with the increased market repos on coverad bonds
and Greek Treasury bills, a € 500 million covered bond issue to intemational and domestic investors and the assets deleveraging resulted in
the significent decrease of the Bank’s dependency from the Eurosystem to € 10 bn at the end of December 201 7, of which € 7.9 bn funding
from ELA, (31 December 2016: € 13.9 bn, of which € 11.9 bn from ELA) and the elimination of the Bank's participation in the second
stream of the Hellenic Republic liquidity support program at the end of October 2017 (31 December 2016: bonds guaranteed by the Greek
Government of € 2.5 bn). On 28 February 2018, the Eurosystem funding further declined to € 7.1 bn, of which € 5.7 bn from ELA.

Solvency risk

The Group monitors closely the developments in the Greek macroeconomic environment taking into account its direct and indirect exposure
to sovereign risk. A key priority is the active menagement of NPEs, with the aim to substantially reduce their stock in accordance with the
Bank’s operational targets and taking advantage of the Group's interal infrastructure, the important legislative changes and the external
partnerships that have taken or are expected to take place. As at 31 December 2017, the Bank has reduced its NPEs stock byE24bnto€
18.1 bn, outperforming the respective initial SSM target of € 18.8 bn.

In parallel, the Group recorded a net profit attributable to shareholders of € 104 million for 2017 (€ 186 million, net profit from continuing
operations before restructuring costs) on the back of higher net interest and commission income from both Greek and internationat
activities. In the context of its strategic plan, the Bank has undertaken significant initiatives towards the fulfillment of the remaining
commitments of the restructuring plan and it proceeded with the redemption of the preference shares by issuing Tier 2 bonds at sarly 2018,
which count in its total capital adequacy ratio . The Group's Common Equity Tier 1 (CET!1) ratio stood at 17.9% at 31 December 2017,
while the respective pro-forma ratio with the redemption of preference sharesfissue of Tier 2 bonds and the completion of the sale
transaction in Romania would be 15.8% . The impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 on Group's CET! as at the end of 2018, according to the
transitiona! arrangements for the S-year phase in period, is estimated to be approximately 20 bps.

The Management, taking into consideration the above factors relating to the adequacy of the Group’s capital position and its anticipated
d access to Eur funding over the foresesable future, as well as the improving macroeconomic conditions in Greece, has
been satisfied that the financial statements of the Company can be prepared on 2 going concern basis.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.
Amsterdam

Report of the board of Managing Directors

Credit Rating of Eurobank Group

The parent company’s (Eurobank Ergasias Group) long term rating was 'B- at June 2018 (2016: CCC+, 2015: SD) according to the
Standard & Poor’s credit rating.

Result

In the current financial year the Company recorded a profit of EUR 7.001.373 (2016: profit of EUR 10.761.289), of which EUR 7.927.711
relates to other operating income (2016: EUR 11.668.242), which is set out in detail in the attached Income Statement.

Risk Management

The Board of Managing Director utilizes a risk management policy and receives regular reports to enable prompt identification of financial
risk so that appropriate actions may be taken. The Company employs written policy and procedures that sets out specific guidelines to
manage foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and the use of financial instruments to manage these.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the loans and advances to customers. For credit risk management reporting purposes, the Company
considers and consolidates all elements of credit risk exposure (such as individual obligor risk, sector risk, repayment risk, etc.). For a

further analysis we refer to note 5.1 in the Notes to the Balance Sheet and Statement of Comprehensive income of this report.

Market risk

The Company takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of
which are exposed to general and specific movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates of prices such as interest rates,
foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

Interest rate risk

The risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Loan assets and loan
lizbilities ere undertaken back to back on terms that both relate to the same variable Euribor or Libor rate. The risk is fully compensated by
this balance and hence there is no sensitivity risk to a change in interest rate.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that assets or liabilities in foreign currencies will fluctuate in value due to exchange rate fluctuations. Loan
assets and loan liabilities are undertaken back to back in the identical currencies.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.
Amsterdam

Report of the board of Managing Directors

Post balance sheet events

Disposal of the Romanian portfelio of Bancpost SA

On 15 September 2017, the Eurobank Ergasias S.A. announced that it has entered into negotiations with Banca Transilvania with regards to
the potential sale of Bancpost 5.A., ERB Retait Services IFN §.A. and ERB Leasing IFN S.A. in Romania (Romanian disposal group). The
sale was considered highly probable, therefore, as of 30 September 2017 R ian disposal group was classified as held for sale in its
financial statements.

On 24 November 2017, the Eurobank Ergasias 8.A. announced that it has reached an agreement with Banca Transilvania with regards to the
above sale. Following the said agreement, on 3 April 2018, Eurobank and BT concluded all the remaining ections and fulfilled all the
conditions precedent for the completion of the transfer of the shares held by the Group in the sbove companies to BT,

In April 2018, the sale of the Romanian disposal group (Bancpost S.A., ERB Retail Services IFN $.A. and ERB Leasing IFN S.A.), which
was the major part of the Group’s operations in Romania was completed.

Following the ab ioned sale and the subsequent core system migration of the relevant data that took place as of 30 June 201 8, as
well as due to the fact thet the audit was initiated after the migration date, the Company has not been in a position to provide to the finencial
auditors part of the data requested. Specifically, due to the af ioned technical issue, the Company did not provide the following
historical data for the customers that were not still in balance as of 30.06.2018 and hence were not igrated: n) detailed inft ton at
client level related to interest income caleulation and b) loan collections.

In addition, in the second half of 2018, the Romanian National Authority for C Pri ion (ANPC) imposed thres fines totaling €
72 thousand on Bancpost S.A. in connection with complaints raised by certain Bancpost §.A. lending clients, related to portfolios of
performing loans which were assigned by Bancpost S.A. to ERB New Europe Funding I1 in 2008, Furthermore, the ANPC concluded that
payments by the consumers such as interests, fees, penalties in relation to all loans assigned to NEF II were illegally cashed in by NEF 11 for
a period of ten years and should be reimbursed by Bancpost S,A.

In 2019 the first i court admitted BT’s laints (as legal to Bancpost S.A.) against ANPC in all three aforementioned
cases, ruling that the relevant penalties and repayment obligations imposed on Bancpost S.A. are cancelled.

Up to the current year all relevant fines and other imposed on Bancpost SA in 2018 by the Romanian National Authority for
Consumer Protection have been cancelled by definitive court rulings,

The SPA for the sale of Bancpost S.A. mentioned above between Eurobank Group and BT also provides for an indemnity in respect of
losses incurred from claims made against the Purchaser or Bancpost S.A. in relation to loans and receivables of the above perimeter, The
Group is closely monitoring the developments of all the above cases of Bancpost S.A.

On 28 June 2018, the BoD of the Eurcbank Ergasias S.A. (*The Bank" or “The Demerged Entity") decided the initiation of the hive down

process of the banking business sector of Eurobenk and its transfer to a new company-credit institution that will be established (“the

Beneficiary™). On 31 July 2019, the BoD of the Bank approved the Draft Demerger Deed through the aforementioned hive down and
blisk of a new comp edit

institution, pursuant to Article 16 of Law 2515/1997 end Articles 57 (3) and 59-74 of Law 4601/2019, as currently in force. In particular,

the demerger involved the hive-down of the banking business sector of Eurobank, to which the assets and the liabilities, as described on the

transformation balance sheet of the hived-down sector as at 30 June 2019 (*Transformation Date”), are included.

On 20 March 2020, the demerger of “Eurobank Ergasias §.A.” (Demerged Entity) through the banking sector's hive down and its transfer
to a new credit institution that has been established under the corporate name “Eurobank S.A.” (the Bank) was completed.

Following the above, the corporate name of the Demerged Entity has been amended to “Eurobank Ergasias Services and Holdings S.A.”
(the Company or Eurobank Holdings).
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.
Amsterdam

Report of the board of Mensging Directors

mmxv,m.mmmmmmwmmumm“ummmaemmmmu

FVTPL of @ 4 million from ERB New Eszope Punding I BV, leaving the Company with anil position of Loans & advances to austomars
aof3l umw.mmautmqmmmmhmmumﬁhmukmmu
net book vehss, The Compeny distributed dividends to its ERB New Europe Holding B.V. in October 2018 and in Otmber
2021Wb(lodﬁ--ﬂelmﬂhwﬂvﬂxMdhhﬂsﬁudh“ﬂmhwhm
operations and holds 0o major assets pther thes cash,

Above meioned post balance sheet everns do not affect the finsmcial postion of the Compasy es et 31122017

TFutere Dovelspments

Busobenk Ergasies S.A. is the sole sharcholder of ERE New Esrope Holding B.V (the immedists pavent and coalrolling entity of the
mxwmmhmdmdeCWDM.MﬂM‘mth
satisfiod that the Campany hes sdequate resourees t contimns in dusiness for the forssesshbls utuce,

Compusition of the board

mmumabmdmm-ﬂnwmmmmmhmnn
mﬂwﬁhw,waﬂmmoihﬂudn*mmhmuhﬂtmb
bdowihpds-utmth-&z:mmzdbmmmﬁhmﬂn“mhmmi
the process of recruiting and eppointi ing Direstor.

As per Jaary 30, 2017, Mr. ER mhm-mmﬁhc«m.m-wmmw L2
Elstershemis has been appointed as Mansging Director of the Company.

Amaterdam, December 15, 2021

‘The Board of Masugiag Directues,
3 E
L.P. Blstershamiz R Wemmni
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Bal Sheet as at D ber 31, 2017
(amounts in EUR, after appropriation of results)

ASSETS
Note 31/12/2017 31/12/2016
Non-Current Assets
Loans & advances to customers 7 241,415,320 240,704,077
Current Assets
Loans & advances to customers 7 86,898,224 66,191,274
Other receivables 8 2,775,269 4,119,547
Income tax receivable 17 339,093 418,238
Cash and cash equivalents 9 19,760,369 6,640,175
TOTAL ASSETS 351,188,275 318,073,311
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the company
Issued and paid-up capital 10 20,000 20,000
Share premium 10 11,980,000 11,980,000
Accumulated profits 10 24,046,085 17,044,712
36,046,085 29,044,712
Current Liabilities
Borrowings from group company it 306,964,704 281,595,472
Interest payable to group company 12 346,167 630,282
Other payables 13 7,831,319 6,802,845
315,142,190 289,028,599
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 351,188,275 318,073,311
- 0
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Income Statement

for the financial year ended December 31, 2017

{amounts in EUR)
Note

ial i and exp
Interest income 14
Interest expense 15
Other operating income
Operating income
Foreign exchange loss
Operating costs 16
Profit before taxation
Corporate income tax expense 17
Profit after taxation
0

01/01-31/12/2017

01/01-31/12/2016

11,622,584 19,161,665
(12,598,908) (18,639,795)
(976,324) 521,870
7,927,711 11,668,242
6,951,387 12,190,112
1,080,751 (495,106)
(989,666) (892,618)
7,042,472 10,802,389
(41,100) (41,100)
7,001,372 10,761,289
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Statement of comprehensive income
for the financial year ended December 31, 2017
(amounts in EUR)

Notes 01/01-31/12/2017 01/01-31/12/2016

Profit after taxation 7001372 10,761,289
Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 7,001,372 10,761,289

PricewaterhouseCoopers
|

Accountants N.V.

For identification

pWC purposes only



ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

for the financlal year ended December 31, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit / (Loss) before taxation
Adjustments for:

Interest income

Interest expenses

Net decrease/ (increase) in loans & advances
Writedown of borrowings from group company

Net decrease/ (increase) in other receivables
Net decrease/ (increase) in other payebles
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Interest received
Interest paid

Net cash from operation activities:

Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in borrowings from group company
Repayment of borrowings from group company
Writedown of borrowings from group company
Unrealised currency translation (gains) losses

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equival at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash flow from investing activities:

Cash Flow Statement

(amounts in EUR)
Note 1/1-31/12/2017

14
15

11

9

7,042,472

(11,622,584)

12,598,908

8,018,796
(20,534,857)
(27,567,121)

(1,155,723)

3,528,474

(10,143,310)
38,046
10,739,248

(12,883,023)

(12,249,039)
(12,249,039)

134,403,455

(84,168,392)

(27,567,121)
2,701,291

25,369,233

13,120,194

6,640,175

19,760,369
e

During the financial year 2017 there were no investing activities in the Company.

©)

1/1-31/12/2016

10,802,389

(19,161,665)

18,639,795

10,280,518
17,022,669
(18,254,323)

(248,065)

1,131,595

28,186,717
(1,125)

31,102,637
(18,183,734)

41,104,495

41,104,495

52,420,526
(76,285,588)

(18,254,323)

1,410,500

(40,708,886)

395,609

6,244,566

6,640,175
M

©®
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

for the financial year ended December 31, 2017

EQUITY

Statement of changes in equity

(amounts in EUR)

The movements in EUR in the year under review can be summarized as follows:

Balance as at January 1, 2016

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2016

Balance as at January 1, 2017

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2017

Attributable to owners of the parent

Issued and Share Accumulated

paid-up capital premium profits Total equity
20,000 11,980,000 6,283,424 18,283,424

= - 10,761,289 10,761,289

. - 10,761,289 10,761,289

20,000 11,980,000 17,044,713 29,044,713

20,000 11,980,000 17,044,713 29,044,713

- - 7,001,372 7,001,372

- - 7,001,372 7,001,372

20,000 11,980,000 24,046,085 36,046,085
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ERB NEW EURQPE FUNDING ITB.Y.

Notak to the Finsacial Statements as 58 December 31,3017
{emounts n EUR)

GENERAL

ERB New Europs Funding I B.V. (the Company) was incopocated on Apell 24, 2008 nd has ifs egisiored and office addruss at Horsagracht S00, 1017 CB, Amsterdam, the Netheriends Tha
Company is ncorparated in The Nethertands and ks whoily owned by ERB New Europs HoMing B,V., 2 wholly awnsd subsidisry of Eurotunk: Ergasias S.A In Greece, Thae Companys Chanber
of Commeres Rumber is 34300637,

In November 2015, following the copltion of the Bank’s thars capita! increass, flly covared by irvestors, institutioctal and othars the peroentage of the Bunk's ondinery shares with voting rights
‘held by the HFSF decreased From 35.41% 10 2.38%

Despite the aforementioned significant deczesss of its poroentags, the HFSF b stil considerod to have significant infiaence over the Bank. In pasticuler, in the contaxt of ths Law 3864/2010. a8 in
force, HFSF exercisss its voting rights in to Bank"s Goneral Assombly only for decisions conterning the smaniment of the Bank’s Articles of Association, including the increass or decrease of the
‘Bank"s cepital or the granting of a correspoading autbiorization 19 the Bunk's Bos, dasisiona conosming the atergera, divisions, conversions, revivals, extension of ducation oe dissolution of tha
Bank, the tansfer of assets, of any othier issue raquiring approval by an imcreascd majority ks pravided for in Compeny Law 2190:1920, In addition, the Bask has entered ifo & new Relaticaship
Framework Agroemment (RFA) with tha HFSF on 4 Docamber 2015 replacing the previous one. signad on 26 August 2014,

The key activity of tha Company is to nvest in grantsd loans to Romanian customers (originased by the Exrobank Ergasis S.4. i Romania), Al loans and edvancas to customers ars acquired
frot the group com pany Bancpost 8.A, The Company itself is funded direotly by Eurobank Cyprus Lid.

Thess B

i statements d authorized for isvuc by the Board of Managing Directors on Decsmber 15,2021,

FRINCIPAL ACCQUNTING POLICIES

Tha principal sscounting polcics sdopted n tho preperation of thesa fiaancist statements urg sct out bokow:
Basls af pragaration

The fowncia! statusats have batn praptrd in ascondsca with [ndermationel Finsnsial Reporting Standards (FRS) b by the IASB, 1s endorsed by the Buropoen Unlon (EU, aad in particular
with thase IFRSs and IFRIC interpestationt lemed st offostiva or iasued knd carty adoptod a3 at tha time of proparing thesa staierents. Thess ferkncial statements have basn preparad undet the
historical cost convention snd engoing consum biaiz.

Tive policies sat out below have been consiatently appliud to the years 2017 and 3016, except as doscribud below, Whire necdssary, compatativa figuron have bom sdjusted to conform with
changax in prassntation in the eurment year,

The pesparation of financhal siateruats ki conformity with TPRS requices the uw of sstimates and assumptions thal affuct the reportad amounts of axscty and Usbilities and disclosura of contingent
tiabiities 3¢ the data of the financial siatemenia and the reparted amounts of rovenucs and sxpensas during te roponting poriod. Althoogh Tiess extimates are based on IENAEWIAICS bast
12 end action: s Ry dilfer from th i

Amerudments to standards adepted by the Company
Th & 1 siandards, 23 issucd by the Ancounting Standards Bossd (LASB) snd eridorssd by the Buropaan Union (), apply from | January 2017:

LAS 7, Amendiment-Disclosurs Inittadve

The amendmcat roxgrines disclosurs of information ensbling users of Grsniciat statentonts to evatuste changes in Babilites arising ffom fsncing cfivitics, nctading both changes from cash flows
sd non-<ash changes, Thic disclosure fequircunents alvo apply fo chaniges in fneacis] essets, such as assits that hodge ieaililios cising from foancing activites, if ash flows from those finsacial
assats were or fisturs cash fows will ba, inchidod i cash flows oot financing sctivites.

The adoption of the amendient Bad o impast on the Company’s finaneial statements.

1AS 12, Ansendiment-Rocognition of Deferved Tax Asscts for Unrealized Losses

The amendiment clarifles hat (a) unreatized losses on debt inswuments measured 3t fair value m the finncial statements and at codt for x purposse may give 656 1o 8 deductible emporary
differencs irrespective of whether tho catity cXpests 1o resaver the carrying stount of the deit msyuradnt by seke of use, (5} sstimates for future txable profits exclude tax deductions resuiting
from the nevorsal of dedductible temporery differences, (¢) the estimate of probable fiuture taxsble profits may fichids the recovery of wn zsset for mare than its carying amount. if there ks fficient
evidence that it is probable that this wilt be realized by the antity. and (d) & defarradt s asset Is asscased in combination with ali of the other deforved i assits whore tho 1 Iaw doss ot restrict
the sourees of taxable profils agsinst which the eatity may maks dadusgtions on the reverssl of that deductisks temporary differencs. Whers restristions apply, defemad tax asscts er msessed in
combination only with other deferred tax assats of the same typs.

Tha adoption of the amendment had no inprst on tie Compeny’s fasacial sateanets
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements o3 at December 31,2017
famountz in EUR)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Annual Improvemsnts to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cysle
IFRS 12 Dhclomofhinonh Other Entities™ huvhnﬂodmtmtmhmmunmn!ln IFRS 12 epply to e entity's interest in 2 subsidiary, a joint vanturs of en essociate classified a1

held for sale exsept for
The sdoption of the smendement had 50 impact on e Company's fnancial Aatenents

New standards, dards and yet adopted by the Company

A number of new standards, emendments o existing standards and terpretations ero effectiva afler 2017, a3 they havo not yet basn endorsad by the Europesn Union ot heve ot besn ealy
2pplied by th Company. Thoss that mey be relevent to the Compeny are sct cut below (except for IFRS 9, which is presented in section 2.1.2)

s 19, Plan Curtaliment or fTective 1 January 2019, not yet endersed by EU)

The emendmentclarifis tat when a change 0 & defned benefit plan i en amendment,curtsibment or senlament skes placs end  romessinament of the et define beneit ity or sset s
roquired, tho updted sctueril from t thould be used to & curent end net interest for th of th period afler the chenge o
the plan, about the effest of a plen amendment, curtaibment or

senkment on the requinements regarding the asset ceiling.
The adoption of the amendment is not expested 1o mpact the Company's financial statements

145 28, Amsndnent ~ Leng Term Interests in Aseoctates and Jolnt Ventures (effecsive | Jenuary 2019, not yet endorsed by EU)

The emendmant clarifies that IFRS 9 Finencial Instruments” including it impaiment nsquirements, applies 1o long term interses in assosiates o joint venties that form part of the cntity's net
Investment in the assooiats or joint ventira but arg ot sesowntad for wsng equity tocounting.

According to the emendment, eny sdjustments 1o tho carrying emount of long tem intarests resulting from the epplicstion of 1AS 28 should aot be considered when applving the [FRS 9
mh»mnwm-pptybm-mnmhﬁewhughhumadmmrmudluu

The aduption of the emendment is ot exposted to impact thu Company's financial statements,

LAS 40, Amendment- Trensfers of Investment Property (effective 1 January 2018)

The emendment clarifles that a transfer of property, inchuding property under construction or development. into or out of investmant property should bamady only when thero hes ban a changa in
usa of the property. Such a changa in 62 0ocurs when the proparty mest, of 622503 10 medt, tho definition of imvestment property and should ba supported by svidence.

The sdoption of the amendment is nol expesied 1o impact the Company's finsncie! statements.

IFRY 2, ond of Share.based Paymenit Transactlons (effestive 1 January 2018)

Tho smendment addresse (a) tho moasuremant of cash-sstiled sharobasad paymenty, (b) the rosounting for modifieationa of o share-bazad payment from cashusatrlad 1o equity-sentlad and (c) the
classiffoation of sharo-based payments settled net of tax withholdings.

smm e emandment clarifios thet n cashsetled shars-basad peyment is mexsired uring the rama approach o1 for equityseitied shere-bessd payments. It aleo clariien that tho lishility of cash.
peyment modifled 1o equity-settled ono is dercoognizsd end the oquity-satiled shara-besed payment is recognized et tha modifetion date fair velus of the squity nsirument
wum.‘ymm«amhmammady

Furthermore, a sherebased payment net by withholding tax on tha emploves's behalf(a net sottlement featura) is clamified as equity setled in its entirety, provided it would have besn classified as
equity-sstibed hed it not inchuded the net settlement foatura,

The adoption of the smendment is not expected to impact the Company’s finencial statements

ml.:\madm:\mm’mhm“ns‘wcm(mlmlﬂh
Tha emendment eddresses the accounting consequences of tha different offectiva dates of IFRS 9 *Financial Insoumants’ and the forthcoming new insuranca contrects Standard. It introducss two.
options for antities that issus insuranca contracts: & temporary exemption from apphing IFRS 9 end e overlay epprosch

Thtnptmllhmpw‘lrvmm from IFRS 9 is IW|thnnbwnhmmm-mm'|mﬂ} connected with insurence. allowing them to continue fo apply IAS 39 “Financial
" while hicy defer th i untl 1 January 2021 at the latest.

Tha avirlay approsch is an opticn for eatties et adopt IFRS 9 and insa ivmrancs contracts, 1 adjust profit or Joss for cligible finencial asses, effsctively reailing in 1AS 39 sccounting for thoss
designand financiel asacts. This epproach ean be vad provided thet tha satty applios IFRS 9 in conjunction with TFRS 4 end classifies flnancial assets 23 fair velua hrough profit or loss @
eccordancs with IFRS 9. when thosa essats wer praviosly classifiod at smortized cost or 03 avellsblo-for-sala i sesordancs with 1AS 39,

The unendment i not relovant to the Company's achrvities.

TFRS 13, Revenue (rom Contracts with Cu IFRS 15 1 Jomuary 2018)

IPRS 13 evablishon 2 sighe, commprehansiva rovenus rssognition modal o dctomiing e end how much fovimua 1 recognizs mn replaces existing reviarecopaion guidance, inchding
TAS 18 “Revenua’, LA || Construction Contrasts’ mnd IFRIC 13 “Customer Loyalty Progeems®

RS 15 appliss to ofl contrasts with customars, expopt thos in the scope of other tndards mich an:

* Financial instrumants and other contraotuel rights or obdigations within tha mops of IFRS 0 *Fiaanceal Rarumants’, RS 10 ‘Conenbidatod Financial Statements’, [FRS 1! fount Arrangements”
LAS 27 *Separats Financial Statements' end 1S 28 Iavastmunts in Assosistes ead Jomt Venhures',

* Leass contracta within tho scope of TAS 17 *Loases® (or TFRS 16 ‘Leasss’). end

* lnsuance contracts within the soope of IFRS 4 *lasurancs Conbasty’

Tharofora, interest and ruhmuhwmmﬁ.mnmumumn«mmmwdm 15,

IFRS 15 specifies that revenuo shioul bo recognized ol en amount et reflects tha consideration 19 which the entity expeots 1o bo entited In cnchangs for banafiing goods or sarvicss It
inidisss ho ooneep o rweogaising ravesfor parforraancs obligations 8 ey ro saaia md tho contol of a good o srvis (e mm»ammw«mmn-mﬁm
them), is obtalied by the customer. For sarvices provided aver fima. such fo d for paset o
n.n-.mnm.wm..mmmwutmmummwummnmmnmmmmuwm-mmummmw
not osour.

Extenive disclosures will ba required in rolation 10 revenu rocognized end expected flom existing contracts

IFRS |5 was amended in April 2016 10 provids saveral clariffeations. inchiding that in relation to the i of the perfis ligations within a contract.

The Company. is curently in the process of finalizing the impact sssessment of IFRS 15, howaver the adoption of the standard is not expoctsd to have a significant impact on the Company’s
financial statemaents aa nt intereat income. which is & primery revenss siream of the Company, i ot impacted by the edoption of IFRS 1S end tha existing Comapeny necousting treatmest for
rovene from contracts with customers fs generaly fa lina with IFRS 15,

pwe
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Notes to the Financial Statements as et December 31, 2017
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TFRS 16, Leases (efTective | Jamuary 2019)

TFRS 16. which supersedas LAS 17 Laasas’ and ratated introduces a single. oncbal s odel for lessens, under whish the classification of leases for a fesses,
o4 either op-'nn]lumofli\nuhmsnﬂmml’dmdﬂmnlulv.\nhulliymlhml‘ulumhl\iI7 Tha new standard provides for the recognition o & ‘right-ofuasasset’ aml
a ‘lease lishility' nmmmmmemmmmmm«n-wlutnrpmnl'nmnaL!mw\wwmmhuumw(wuuumlfnupmodnlwnMMgaﬁxl
consideration.

Tharightofussassat s inifilhy measuned a cost,consiting of tha wnount of ha leasa bikiy, pis any kssa the lessor ator baforo loss any lease
incentive received, tha inital estimate of restoration costs and any inifal direct costs incurmad by i ot cont hess iation end kmpaiment. The kass
Nahility Is initialy rosognized at en amount equal to tha present valua of the kease payments during tho esa terms that ara not yat paid.

Accordingly, the typical swaight ling vperating k vaung b der LAS 17 in replaced by dation chasge of'the ‘ngh " and Uie ntersst sxpnss on the leass
Hahility". Themo'mmn(uuumdnﬂwbyhungumm“mmudhuw Mrmhmudhmoﬂwvm:um Addmonally, the accounting trsaimant for
los v affectad by IFRS 16,

‘The edoption of the new stendard iz not expected to impact the Company’s flnancial statenents.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimed)

IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January 2021, not yet endorsed by EU)

[FRS 17, which supsrsades TFRS 4 ‘Insurance Coatracts’ provides a comprobensiva and consistent sccounting model for & Resplion toi issued, all oimerenca
comtracts end o investment contracts with discrationary pertsipating fostures that en entlty issues provided it also isscs insurence contaats. Financial guerantes cantracts ers allowed 10 be withia
the seope of IFRS 17 if tho ontity has praviousty ssserted that It regarded them es imsuranca contracts.

Accordiag © [FRS 17 genersl modl, groups of insursnos eontrastn whish era meneped together end ara subjoat to similar risks, aro meased basad on building blocks of discourted. probebilite
wightad futuro cash flows, & risk adjustment and a contraonial servics margia ('CSM') reprosenting tha uassmod profit of the contrasts, Under the model, estimates oo remesaired n cach
reporting period. A simpliffad massuremacnt epproach may ba used if it is expeciad thet doing = @ reasonebls epprovimation of the generel model is produced ot if e conweets ey of short
durstion

Ravenua is ellocated to pariods in proportion to the valua of expueted coveragy and ofher services that the inmurer provides during the period, claims ere pressnted when incurned and sy
iavestment Le o A oven if the insured event dovs ot 0scur, e ot includad in revenus and clsima, Insurencs services results erg preasnted separately from
tho insurance finence incama ot expenss.

IFRS 17 s not rebevant to the Company’s astivities

Arnusl Improvements to [FR3 2014-2016 Cycle (effective 1 Jenuary 2018)

1AS 28 Invastments in Aszosiates end Joint Ventures': Tt I clrifled that vemhure capital organizations, mutuel frds, unit rusts end similar entisis ars allowed 9 elsct measuring their nvertments
n associates or joint ventures at fir value through profitof loss,

The adoplion of the emendment 15 not expectad (o impct the Campany*s financial siatements

Anmual mprovements to IFRS3 2015-2017 Cycle (effective 1 January 2019, net yet endorsed by EU)

The emendments ntroduco key changes t four [FRSs following tha publication of the results of the LASB’s 2015-17 cyele of the ennual improvements project, The topics addressed by thess
amendments aro sot out below:

) [FRS 3 *Busmess Combsnations’ and IFRS 11 *Jomt Amangements” Ites clarified how an entity sccounts for mereasng its mterest m a joint operation that mects the definition of a bitsiness.
- [fa party obtains control of a business that is a jobt operation, G . itutes 8 busmess

schicved in stages and the soquiring party remeasres the ntire praviously beld intsrostin the eseats and iebiliies of
the joint operstion af fair vaue.

«If a perty cbtains joint control, then the previously held @terest is not remeasured.

b)LAS 12 ‘Income Tawes': Itia clarified that all income tax consoquancen of ividends, inchuding paymonts on fasncial instruments elassifiad as equity, should barscognized in proiitor boss, other
iva equity, dopending cn whero tha originating ransseton or eveat thet i Biving tiss 1o the dividend, was rocognized

€} AS 23 "Bosrowing vosts’: hhd«iﬁdmllm'bwmwhlmmmwmdwnbnlmifyiummnﬂbomdupmnf.n.\lbmwi\pmhq substantialty alt of the activities
Recssaary O propars that assat for its intendad uss or sals ero compiste.

Tha adoption of the emendments is not expected ta impect the Company's finencial statements.

IFRIC 22, Foretgn Currency T nd Advance C (effective 1 January 2018, not yet endored by EU)

IFRIC 22 provides which exch !oln--Np:x\l\'wwmlml‘imlhnhmnmmwmdﬂ.mhmmmﬁﬂhl\uun
tha dato of the tramsesticn for th ining t & on of tha related asset, expanta or income is the data of tho edvance comsideration. ie. when the
entity initily recognicsd the y lsbility (dofimed incorma Esb3ity) erising from tha advanes ecnsideration. IF thera ere multiple payments or

oot yment esaet) or
roosipts fn advanca, the entity must datermine a dato of ransaction for sach payment or reccipt.

Tha sdoption of the interpretation ia not expocted to impact the Company's financial siatements

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective § January 2019, not yet endorved by EL)

The interprotation clarifles tha epplicstion of to recognition end messarement requirements i IAS 12 ‘lacome Texes' when thers b uncatainty oWr meome tax troatments. n such a
w.mcptn’)nmdmuﬂmmln{mludﬂh\\dh&muﬁlﬁihmﬂh[hb\slzithn‘dmmhpnﬁl(llxhu).ixhnwndhxh.uudh‘mnmdlx
rates determined apphving [FRIC 23,

According to the interpretation. each uncenam tax irestment is considerad ssparately or togather a5 a group. depending on which epprosch berter predicts tha resohution of tha unoertazty end the
entity should essum that a tax suthority with the right to examine tax treatments will exsming thern end will have full knowledge of ell elevant information.

If an entity concludes it is probable et the taxation suthority will acospt an uncertam tax treatment, it should detarmine its sccounting for income taxes consistently with that tax treatment. If it
euwbdnluthhno(Mmummaﬂﬁﬂb‘wMM&MMWE“SM.“MMHNM"Mp.hdi:whi&lmdﬂmniu&xivnd‘
using the mothod that best predicts th of thy ity (e the most mount or

Judgments end eatimates meds for the rocognition snd mesaeemant of the effost of uncertsin X treatments should ba reassessed whanaver circumatances changs er new informaation thet affects
thoss fudgments arisa (37 action by the tax suthoriy, avidanoa that ithes talean o particuler positivn in conmection with a similar itom ot the expiry of It rightto exaraing a particular tax treatmazmt.

Tho sdoption of ths intapretstion is nol xpested t impact ths Comtpeny’s fhaancial statements,
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1.2 Transitlon o IFRY 9 *Flnancial instnunents’ and impsct 2ssesanent

5 Juy 200, o LAST ublhod i il verson GFIFRS 9 Fancad Ismumenss efetive  Japusey 2018, which reploss 148 39 Francial tument Recognition snd Mesurment”
IFRS S insludes ravised of financial ssscts and Habilfics, impasiment of financiat assets and hdgy secouting.

Qlassification and measurement

RS @ axtablishes & new classification and messuomant approach fo alt types of fnencial asset that reflocts the etity’s business todef for mamging the axsets and their contracual cash flow
characteristicn. IFRS 9 requires Mancia assdts 1o be chmlid into one oni:a fotlowing nmu.vremaﬂ catepories; amortizod cost, fiir valia through other comprehensive fneome (FYOCD ox fair
value through peofit oc foss (FVTPL). ity, toxnm and reccivables end available forsata.

il iacd cost I they a0e held within = business modet whass objective I8 to hald fnancial assets i1 order 1o coliet contractal cash flown, snd thelr coniracnial
cath flows represeat sobly payinents of principst and Intercat (SPFI). Financial sssots will be mosaured at FVOCTIf they us¢ bhuld within a business smode! wheose objective fy achiavod by both
collecting conmracrual cash Nows sad stiing financial assets and their conwactual cash flows repressat swkely payments of princips! and interest. Alt other fnenciat assots will be classifiod at
FVTPL,

An entlty may at inittal resognition, designato & financial axst at FVTEL iff doing so climinates or significantly reduces sn asoounting mmnnvh X-\ﬂhmnm. o hhul rccosnum ofm squity
Instrument that is not hald for trading, en entity may irrevosably alect to proseat subsoquent change b fair vafue through OCH, This ok

Under IFRS 9. ambedded derivatives in conasis wharo the host s a fnancial a5sat in the scope of th standaed, an no longer bifuroated Instead, the hybrid foancial insmment is swessed for
clussification as x whols,

IFRS 9 rotains most of the existing requirements R foanciat lisbitiss. However, for Bnancixt Nabilties destgnand st FVTPL, gains or Tossas aftvibatabls to changax in own cesdit risk shall be
(resented in OCT and shall aot b subsquantly wansforad lo profit of ko, wrikas wach & presmtation woukd crvats or salwgs at sesounting misaach. Under AS 39, aff fair valus changes of
tishiities designated at EVTRL are recognized in profit of hoss, uirkiss thix would croste or enlecgs an accounting misatsh.

Business modet assessmant

Thy Khef rettects how th b g flows. That is, whether the Company*s shyoctive i solely to collact contractiad sash Gows fom
assat, to reafize cash flows from the salo ofu«u. o Mh tocallect wnhclud cash flows and cast flows fram the sahs of asscty. Finenciel sssots that are held for wading of sansgad oa 1 iy
wvalue baxis will be measured at FVTPL.

The Compuany’s epproach is @ perforn del it sing modsd and providad to key pesonnet. fn meking the sbave
asseasment, the Coapsny will consider a numbir of factoes inchiding:

1. the stated policies and objectives for each portfolio)

2. how the performanca of cach portfolo s avahiated and repontad;

3. the risk: ited with to and how Tk god,

4. how managers ars compensates:

5. past expraicnco un haw the eash flaws lrom tiuss purtitios wers vollected and how the Company's stated abjective tor nlauagn‘ the Enancial assets b schicved snd

6.the Fraquency. valuma and iming ofsas n e perod, e esscos for such sabs iy, Lncspotiva of s Ssqioncy snd vbic, ks dus 9 31
inerease in assels’ aradit risk and v in clse of an uneXpoctad Stress Sass SR, Wittt
SPP1 assemment
I assesving whether @ eash flovn ly ‘peincipal and intensst, the Compuny ider whethse 1 terms of with 4 bwsic
leading intersst inch ideration for the time valuo of monwy, ereditrisk, oiher baskc lawdtng risks sad s profit margh. This will include & asamament of whiathit 2
fnencinl um mhhuconmm) torm that codld change the antount mmm; of contractust cash Hows in & way that it would nod ba coasisient with e sbave condition, Where the contrestual
to risk or voletility with a tha ralaiod financial asset will bemonwrad at FYTPL.
¢ chang on transition
For the purposs of the Gansition 1o IFRS 9, v Company is carrying out a busin oded i Wmmd-mdcdmhwnfmmmmlmm(ﬂmm) frits
deht mstruments portfolio to determing sy potential changes. ificati s being por tha fists that exist et tha darg
of initial appiicetion i3, | January 2018, itia performed on a for the rotail and part al'th i of lizod form, whetvas for the
emoining whelesato portfobois betng performad o an individunl basts, The busk 3} asscasmient and the SPI review od o result n Any siga hy o how
Unazciat axsots are mcasuted undar IAS 39, axoept whesa notd below. In preticuar:
a)ln-mundtdmeelmbmhmd t under IAS 39, ara atsi expectad to bs moarired atamortized cost under IFRS &,
ity ofdedt nsaflcd s avaisbio-forsak under 1AS 39, wo expested 10 ba messirad i FVOC
hakk sasaty in e diit poctfolio that sns preasured &t o ddor TAS 39, ans sapected # amortized cost or

FVOCT depending ca ihe buskizss model within which they are held:

a)lmuad sases of debit instruments that are expested 10 fail the SPFI text whwn arameasured ot FVIPL:
'3 A FVTPL under [AS 39 xprached d a1 FVTRLunder [FRS 9
able-f A9 39 a0 oxp b ok o FYTPL, tndic IFRS 9, ared
a)flﬂmhlﬁlb&qﬂa that ars designered at FEVTFL un#«Lﬁ its) aro expeated d whikiany il be

separated fom the hust contracts whens appeopriate,

Irpairveet of financial esscts

RS 2 introduces an expected erodit foss (ECL) model eurred lozs model in 1AS 39. The new s irnis d in [AS ired & coodit event to have

oeutred before credit lasses wera rocognized end wﬂl-pplymnmdupopdmvffma&l parad 10 1S 39, ECL will require the wse of complex models

and s

The now spamment motel, whiich intsoduces "o b thet i eredit quatity sincs inil will apphy ko finstictal assels that ara ot measiced at

FVTPL, including foans, itics, Baancial g and lean i issud, i 0 impaiment oss will ity

Upon it ion of in scope of the new impais ineig &eCumpmy il alossalk | to 12-month ECL. being the ECL that result from defeult events.
within the next fox thoso z t b i credit risk since initial ncognitioit, a loss aliowancs

squal to ifetime ECL will isig from dafault that the equu i of tha mswument.

Finansisl assets for which lﬂnmmECan»wﬂed\\ﬂJbemwiﬂMnhcm ms:l' d 4 » ugnifican! increass in edil risk will be

allocatal in * Wi whils finaniat willbo in mgﬂ' Tha loss allowunes tix puuhu«d o uriginatod srabit unpairad (POC1) finsncial asscts will

alwys be 1t to litstime ECL, as explainod below.

ABecation of Exposures ta Stages

The C¢ distinguish financist ‘budenImelhECLl(xuwl)md\hma&lluﬂyﬂfﬂimﬂcl.l(mleZmﬂi).ykpmdh;wwb&m
m«mm-mﬁrmmumhemnmuummwmammmmﬂ
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Notes to the Financial Statements es at Decernber 31, 2017
{amcuats in EUR)

To dstermine the risk of default, mlCmmyWI&thMmkxmmm]mv&dl' i with the EBA definitions. In particular, the Compamy
finencial are in stego 3 by applying i of i

of90 days pest due and;
- the existence of unlikeness to pay (UTP) eriteria
Acsordingly, upon transiticn, the Compeny considers all non-performing expostires in sccordance with EBA definitic itimpaired and classifies the stage 3 for finencisl
reporting purposes.
Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCT) financial assata, which includs assets purchased of @ decp di and s i nsets arising from tion ol thy
end ars considered originated credit impaired. &ro not subject 1o stapa eliocation nd are always measured on the basis of ifetima ECL. Tha Company will recognizs interest income of fnmncial
essctaat stage 3 as well s POCI by epplying the effistive interest cata {EIR) o the creditedjusted EIR rospastively on their net carrying emount.

Fbmehlnmmnmpﬂmlipmt-mmudkdkmm-lrmmmm willbe in ags 2. In assassiag whether a finsncial esset hes experienced a signifcant incroasa i credit
gitin, the Compeny P backstop criteria including:

~ralativa chenges on tha reskual lifstime probability of defaut:

« ebeohita thrasholds on the residual lifutling probability of defhult:

= relativa chenges on eredit risk ratings:

- wateh list stotus;

« forbesrance; end

- 30 days past dus 03 backstop indioator,

Managoment may epply temporary Individual o erlays on exposurea sharing th dit sk iatis k tpecific siuations which ctherwise would not b
fully reflected in the impairment models.

Henca, upon trensition, o Company, considers ell performing forbome loans as stage 2. along with eny performing exx essezsed 1o et significent increass in
eredil risk sinea Initlal racognition,

TthelllmywﬂMdmnm[ﬂ\mﬁﬂmwﬁdwnm%lwl!umlnlllol measurad based on 12 month ECL. The Bank will rscogniza imtenest income of
financlel ssats et stago 2 end st maga 1. by epplving the EIR on thair gross camrying smount

When tha critri for staga 2 clasifleation ero 1o longer met. and tho finsncial assa s ot crodht mpaired, It will o rectassifiod o stage 1, In eddiion, subssquent ranefers from saga ) to tage 2
will ek placs when tha flnsncial ssset 65521 10 ba crodit impairod beasd on the essessment ap disoribed sbove.

Messurement of expected credit losses
described sbove, Ifths eredit risk of n flnencs Ia ot classiffed 3 POCT hes not ineroased significantly et the reporting daty compared to it criginetion dats, the loss allowancs

wlbummndumunwnuqudlolz menth ECLs. The 12~ —meonth ECLa represent a portion of lifetime losses, that resul from defanlt cvents hat are pousible within tha nedt 12 montas
afer tha reporting dats end is equal 10 tho expectad cash shortfalls over tha 1 of tha instrument or group of inetruments, co to loss events probsble within the next 12 months.

In cases whero a significant ineneasa in crodit risk on a fnencial & boen identified at . data, ECLs will ona
lifetime basis, 1 lnlnaECLlenmllm“peﬂdu\ﬂhlﬂlaﬂmr-al!deﬂb&hhhmuw:ﬁowukoﬂ\eﬁi\nudnmml

Tbcmmm!ufEChwﬂhulpvbbdu\-we-;hldlvm.umwofudnhlulmwnns:Uhamavﬂnofnmn Ammnmﬂﬂmwmmhui\mtdm
r.be!omBmkllkaﬁmmmlm:o{mhml-dhmﬂmmlmmm atthe
(ElR)ul'llnl.nohM.\Lahmwﬂtho{mwu‘mnmmnpmm(mb hm[mumwﬂmgmﬂlmlm

le&uwrpo-uofmcﬂrnlECLlthmupnvwmmdmclamldummlhuﬁmhthiMMwMHIMWMNIMlmdm'M

that ere part of ey In o casaof e ioad financial instrument.the estimated expectad cashflows related o the colfansal
reflocts tha emotat and tming of cash flows that arc eapected from k the colle i scliing tha collateral, irrespective of whether foreclosure
s probeblo,

ECLS will bs calculated over the meximum contracnual poriod ovor which tha Company is exposad 1o credit risk. Tha maximum contrastusl period in defined based on th mubstentiva terms of the
insument inchiding the Company’s iy to demand repayment or cancallstion and the castomers sbilig to require cxieniscn,

ECLs e indiidoalylarga creit ampaird ouns. v pro-dafined maleiity reshlds i secondence it ths Company's ik : Forthe

remaining reail xporures end soms exposres 1o mmall and mediumesiasd eatprines, ECLa will be messursd o Thia bormower spucific icn, collective
Iozasa and forwerd ik

ECL Key Inputs

Tha ECL esk based cn tho term £ mb-pv-uun(mmmmumum-nm)o-uvmcmvmm,nm

mummaunnmuwmmmmwmmmm-mnmmum.nm andrisk

mansgement practices. similar with the Group polisies

Tha PD regeosants tha elibond of a borrower dafeutiag on s fivancial bligations ciler on the e twshvo menthsor over the remslaing s, In sooordancs with IR, the Company will
w PDs that wil i looking baformation

E he pany [ 4 ot o event of dafbult The EAD cf'a financial esset will bs the pross camyving amount at defoult. In estimating the EAD, the
menyvnluuhnu'k:lmvlluumdhwﬂknkhlmlonﬂmmmqunfwudnw

LD represents the Company’s expoctation of the extant of loas on a defilted is t ] cash flows duc and thoss that the Compeny expects to
rescivg inchuding sy emouats Bom collateral liguidation, LGD veries by typs of ooumterparty, fype end seniority of claim. availability of coliatoral or other credit sepport, end is usually expressed es
& percantags of EAD.

The PD, LGD and EAD used for eccounting purposss may differ from tiose used for rogulatory purposas. mmms?ulmm-ﬁlhnh“kxn’&rvmmnu
‘through-the-cycla’ estimata. I addition, LGD and EAD for reg p b on ks caverity during coontumic duwntem conditions, whils andar [FRS 9, LGD and EAD
eaffoct an unbissed snd probability-weighted emouat.

mmwnmnmummmol‘whmmhmlmw-mm&ﬁam.mlmym-«mﬁg thy schedule and i 280 lied to
tho EAD at each period, reducing the latter amount sccordingly.

IFRS 9 Lrplementation Program

A Group-wida [FRS 9 Program. led jolnily by Group Risk and Group Finmca of Eurobenk, was initisted in 2013 12 ensurs a rebust ond high quality imphamontation in complisncs with the
requirements of the Stenderd end rospoctive regulatory guidence.

o»numm-wumm.n.mmu.....-.-'o'mqmoymmmWmdmmmmaevmumm.‘mmu
tasks, 03 well &3 fwo M omminesn, nemely s tha Toshnical Commines

The Steaning Comminsa. which ia jolatly led by the Chief| RO) end Chief | (CFO) end comprisss peaior staff Bom ol the main functions of tha Evrobenk. is
mendated ta overse: the implementation m sscordance Wwith the Standard. moniters tomcines and a quality of the Program's deliverablos, roviews program's rasubs, approves deliverables nd
thanges ia the scops of the progiam Whens appropnets end regulerl informis th Exvwutive Board. te Board Risk Comtmitt, ha Audi Comanines aad the Busand of Directors n the Program's
implementation progress.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING I B.V.

Notes to the Flnancial Statements as ot Decomber 33,2017

(xmounts it EUR)
The npk ticn for ha Company i meneg the catablishment of'losal PMOn snd Stocring Committoss. Progross is ronitored by the contrat PMO with Head Office providing
uiden within um Croup.
The: Compmyhu lm)y somploted the IFRS 9 nmmg tk #0d procesa flows snd the ECL whils Mh« mﬂnmmu will contiua during 2018, Edmlkml
' mgoﬂshuhm“ impact of [FRS 9110 s Company's &
a0 welt undmmw and will ts applisd sonslatontly. The b of a1 (T sysiom fox the salsulsion of ECL hax PW‘M 0 pmducm ung !hrﬁu It guaster of 201 7
Coamparative Infoemution on iransitien
The s i IFRS & will b i 3 the Company's balaaga sheet on the data of transition ua § fsauary 2013 Tiw Company infends to appiy the

EXEMEKION MO 1 FAIBS com parLiive ﬂmm foc prive periods, men;fm ma Coenpany’s 201 7 comparatives will b presented on an LAS 3% basa

Imgact assesunent

“Thus impact of ratatining 1 TFRS 9, botite S, akimatad 10 be €12 milion bt Tnaassy 2008 R 3 8t amortized eot, The sathvahad epast b ™ NpnY's
landing pordotia, The abovs impack b expocted 3 SRuitY by the Kae snount ws 1o defered 15t axsst I expested 10 be recognized by the Company oo TFRS 9 toapag.
Chassification st Medsurement

(IFRS 9 s sxpectad o be € 17 mithon a3 of' 1 Januacy 2018, This smoent includos s eilist fom th Josas debt inatnanaits that
hlw falled the SPPHOM and massurod at EVTPL, One boan fhiled the SPPL st

IFRS, repaymoent Negative C: (effectivn 1 Januacy 3019}
‘ allow nmmmnwnmmmdmnmwﬂﬂ dependi ven in the f|
options whic could sesult in the party that wigg: y i i Bom the other pasty fon). Therefirs, £ thess financial axsots wit
t ot ty termination of mdi £ vehich pacty pays or b for the carly oa.
Applying IFRS 9 before would n of these i FVTPL.
Thy o i lcco\mmg vffnm:hl tiahilitias under IFRY 9. In specifls, when & fisancial labifity menural llunoﬂmdwﬂ hmadmed wathoul this resuliing in
a gainor loss, onginat it cash flowa and the modified cash flows di t th should bo
necognized inn profit or loss.
Ty f the 5 ot ted to bmpact the Company's finan ekl statancns.
Gotng concom
The accompanying fnencial statexients have bom prepared based on the golng coneem principle, which assas that the Compsny will continua to opvrats kn iha Dresesabla fisturs, I ordor to
25350 this ssumgption, Tevizws th forozasts of the futwre cash inflows.

The Compamy renorded fininchig only ffom relkted parthoa, tharafore, s going concem depends of the Ruturé continuation of thesa relatlons.
The Bosrd of Directors, taking io consideration the ficturs mentioned 2t tha Report of the basrd of Managing Direciors, have bot satistied thet e francial stakements of tha Company can be
preparcd on & going concem basis.

Functional snd presentation cumrency

The Compiny's jon curtency s e Eure (EUR) betng the Minctional eurrency of the parent compeny

Fordgn currency

Transactions in forsign curmencies are transtated ita Evro st tha forelgn oxshango rate provailing st the dae of the braraction. Monatary assets and Habiltica siated in Bicign curencie &t the
Balancs shuet d5s an frsnstabed into Buro at the foseiga iting t that dato. Forcign axchange dills arishig on Yansiation us recognlzod n the lhcoms Statement.

Non-monctary assets xod abitities i forcign currenciun, Which ara stated st historical cost, s ianaiated inio Euo a1 the fosslga oxchange i provailing at e date of the trmpsction, i the
Balanos Sheet. Any resulting movement it tso nogaized in the Inconta Stakement.

Encosme ax

Inanm tu on lils pmm w Ioss for tha your compcises currant tax. Crrent 1 i the expeetod tax payatiic based on the bl prodit fix the yesr, uring tax catas soacted of substantially pravadling
inke profit may differ from profit as repocted in tha lnooma Statament because & sxcludes itams of B1come ur oxpsrie that ars Wbla of dedustibls b other years s it

ﬂm!\er oxchides items ammmwr tanable or deductiblo.

Defesved tax

Duferred income W s provided i full, using the Hability method, on temporary diffrences srising betwoen the tax bases of assets and lisbilithes and ik carmying wmounts in tho fnancial
samants.

Defiered imcome tax is determnmed using tax rates (xad Iaws) that have ban enacted or substantially enacted by the balmce shoct dats. g ar eapected lo npply whaat the related defirred income
tax gssets is realized or tha deferred inoome tax liabifity is settiod,

Defired & that it is grobsbls that futun profit will bs availabk which 5 i a0 b utdind,

Financial instruments.
Finsncisl asscts and finaacisl lisbilitios arc rocognizad on the Company'’s battnce shost when dhe Company becomes  party 1o the contractual provisions of the invasmicnt. As at Decamber 31
2017, the Company di nctconelude say dacivaiv contaca. A Franchlseset i dasscognized whe the conmechal s fiows of th loas &, o the Compuay tranafess hé rights 10 coccive

those cash flaves in e outright zafe in whick slthensk wustsferred.

Logns and recetvabiles

These represent Logas and Advances 1o customers, and zrs measurad 81 iniial recognition at feir value snd are n!»aquamy monsured at amontiead <ok using the effective inlrent ric muthod.
Appropriata provisions for astiniated irrecoverble muounts era recognized in when thera s maset {5 bnpaired.

The nominal oe cost vaius of the othor reccivables, which arenot iraded in active markets or for which no valuatlon techniquas sxn b appliod is asrsmed 1o approximate their fagr valie.

Share capital
Share cxpital i2 oquat to te nominal veluz of shares, respectively with 1o me valys ol capital umhm of promium aad incorporated reserves or othar operstions which load to its modiflsation.
Subscribod and paid-in tapital is recorded based oa the ertioles of & mdon i cding capitl paid-in.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING i B.V.

Notes to the Financia] Statements es ot December 31, 2017
(emounts in EUR)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimued)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprize cash on hend end demand deposit. &nd ofher short-tem highty liquid investments that ars roadily convertibke 1o known amount of cash and are subjostto e
msignificant risk of chengas in value.

Lrpatment

For finencial asaots that ero ot earvied et fr vetuo through profit or losa, the Company assess2s st oach belanca shest dato whether thers is objective avidance that a fivsncit] asset or group of
finenciat asseta is mpaired. A finencial assat or a group of fnencial assets s impaired and impainment losses ars incurred if thens is objective evidemos of Empakmaent o1 & roslt of Gae of more
events that occurred after the intal resogaition of the asset (a ‘loss cvent’) end that loss avent (or vemts) hes = Empect on the cstimated frturs cash flows of the finencial esset or groep of
financial assats thet cen bo reliebly stimated

Impuasrment indicators
For the Company'a Retsil loan exporures, objastive evidenoe thet & loen or group of loans is impaired inchidas ohesrvable data that comes 1o the attention of the Company about the following loss
avents:

(n)llullhmlnmnddﬂm«al,\‘ofmvbll'a.nigﬁlic-nduabne(molml/orhiyheumwh-orm;

(b) a defbuh or breach of contract,

(e} significant changes in the performanca and behavior of ihe borrower (for exampta, a number of delayed contrastual peyments);

{d) measurabla desteass b the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial asses through @ Regative payment pattem such 23 missed paymenta;

(¢) tho Company granting to the borrower, for esomomis or lagal reascus relating 10 the borrower's financial difficuly, a concsssion that the lender would not otherwisa consider, such &3 @
vedustion of the obligors monthty instalimant fir & spostfio poriod of tima, or & temporary er parmanent rodsation of interost rate:

() it I3 becoming probabla that the borrower will sater 3t bankruptey stanis or other finencial roorganization:
(pbmmnm“ummmdn.mmwmwwm-muwmm-.

- sarious liness or dlzsbillty of tha obliger or o femily membar

~death of the borower,

Fu-nloiwlhmhlmmmhmwrpom-lunmmCunmyuumnanmmmmmmlmmmhnvmmdhmmm;
the following criteria:

() sigificant flnenclsl difTiutty of tha lasuar or chligor:

(b) & dofautt of bresch of controst:

changes in the financial pertt the borruwer that afsct thy burrewer's ability to meet its debt obligations, such es:
-operating losses:
wworking capital deficlencies;
~the berrower having & negative
(d) other facts mdicating a ion of the financial 1 such &3 2 breach of lean covenants or other tenma, or a partial writoofT in the barrower's
bligati ic o logal 1o hia financial starus:
(2} significant changes in the valus of the eollsteral supporting tha obligation:
(1) the Company granting for euonemic or kegal ® *s tinancial diliculty, & concossion that the lender would not utherwase consider, sach as
lmm‘ﬂuobﬁmmﬁl\'hnhmlhlwﬂhwﬂdﬁmwlhﬂmumnrﬂchdh“nﬁ:
(g) becoming probabls that the borrower will eater into b othar izat

(h) significant adverse changes in the borrower's indusiry or peographical area that could affect e borrowar's ability 1o me=t its dobit oblrgabions,
(i) market related information including the status of the burmower's ether debt obligations;
1) éignificant downgrade in the intemal or extemal credit rating of tha bomrower's finaneial metomants when considered with other infermation,
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING 11 B.V.

Nates to the Finaneial Siatements 21 at Dessmber 3, 2017
{(amounts iy EUR)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIRS {continued)

Ausats qarriod ot amored cost

Impaimaent ssxcssment

The Company fist asscxses whather objosttva evidenca of impaiomant axists tndividually for financiat asects that ara individuuslly significsat, snd individually or colloctively for flnanclal asscta that
e ot Individuatly significant, If the Company determines that no chjocdva evidencs of impatnent sxdsts for an individuslly atscotad fanciat sasdt, whether significant o not, It inchidss the
asset in & group of financial assets witl similer orosit risk charactaristics wnd collectively assarsas thm for impainuent. Aasets that ans individually sassassd for mpainment 3nd for which s
Enpaiment foss is oF contin Inchuded in of impaimment.

In detornyining whéther & Joan s individasity significent for the purposs of assessing inpeirment, trs Company censkdors a nunbar of fhcioes, inchuding the importsnca of the individusl loan
valstionship snd how it is mansged, e sizs of tho loan, and the product fine. Coasaquently, loans 1o corperste clients and finsnoial Bstiutions & well as invastoient sacuritios, sro ganerally
considered as individually significant, Ratail lending portfolios ara ganerally asscsssd for impabmunt on  sollectiva basis a5 they coasist of largs Romogencus portfolion, Whils exposures that are
managed on a0 individusd basis are assessed individuatly for inpainnent,

The Company sssesses at each whether there is an obiestive evidenoe of Fupairment.

Interest-bearing horrowlngs

Interost-bearing borrowings are resognized initislly a1 fiie valua and sbsquently measnaed a1 emonized 601 using the sffective intercst method. Applying the sflestive mterest mathod, the antity
amtortizes any foos, tmnsaction cost and other preaaiums of discounts inclided in the calowlation of the effective inkrest rate over tha expectud life of the underlying Hability. Any such wncntization
would barecognized in the lncoms Statemenit,

De-recognition of financial Habillties

A Ginaacial lisbility is derecognized when the obligation under the Eability is dischargod, cancelhed or expires. When an wdsting financis} tizbilty of the Contpany is replaced by another froen the

same tounirpanty on substantially difforent terms, or the terms of sn sxisting Hsbility are madified, such sn. g ifloation is treatad as an i of the ongmal

lability snd grition of a new Hability. i i i AmounRts is recognized in the incoma statement.

The Company eansiders the terms to ba substantislly different, if the duscounted prasit vaus of the cash flows undar the new torms, including any fees paid net of any Boes woosved and
i the original sffct Is 4t beast 10% diffirent from the discounted prasent vales of tha remaining cash flows of the origmat financist Hability.

Other payables

Other paysblés are recognized mitialty at fair value. The niomital of cast valua of the other payabla, which are not Taded in acive markits o for whish no valuation 1echaiquea can be applied is
assumed o approximate their fair value. Other payablas aro subscquently stanid at amortizaad cost, Osher payabls are classified as curvent tistiilitica, unicss the Compeny kias indisputable right 1o
postpone the settioment of ohligations for at teast 12 smonths altar the balance shest date.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING I1 B.V.

Netes to the Financlal Statements 23 st December 31, 2017
(emounts in EUR)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Tha Cash Flow statement hes been preparcd i1 sccordance with the indircct method. Tha pressntation for the year 2017 hes not changed in comtperiscn for tha yeer 2016,

PRINCIPLES OF DETERMINATION OF RESULT

Genersl

Result ia determined as o difforonca batwaon hnunnnldbyhmu-ﬂmmmdmﬂmktcy—'.memm‘imhmy‘hwhiv.hil'umﬁmd

Interest Invome ond expenues
Interast income end interest expenss ene recognized fn tho Incoma Stadment for all intercat boering finencial mstruments.

For all interest bearing financial insruments. interost income or interast expenss s rocogninad using the effectiva intsront rete, which is the rate that eactly discounts estimated future cash
peyments o recelpts through the axpectad Hfe of the finenclal instrument or a shorter pariod. whers appropriate. to the net camying smount of the fnencial asset or finencls! bty (on sn
emortised cost basis), Tlcﬂllwhﬁmhﬁhdlltlumhﬂnllumlofmhmﬂhmlrfammmmrwhl)mwhmmlbuT\om inchudes ol foes and
points paid or reecived betwom partlos to the contract that ars en Integral pert of the offestive i transaction costs and i discounts,

Foza and Commissions er0 generatly recognized on en accrual basis when tha servics has been provided.
Exchange rate differences

Ewhmpul‘diml\'s'n[upunﬁnlﬂﬂ-nwllMmmmhlnwwhhcm_wihewﬁmmﬂt
Exchenga rato differences on n nd nondishlities I in tho Profit & Loss Account in tho period they ariss,

Tazation

Domestic corporate incoma ax s datermined by applying Dutch fisoal practics rufes end taking into account ellowablo deductions, charges end exemptions.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.Y.,

Notas to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2017
{amounts in EUR)

§ FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Compeny's slvio expone to vrity ofriks, Exposurs 0 cret. s e cumency and Kquidy ek s i ho ol cours of th Company's busnce. Tho Company's ovral
policy focus on i financial

‘The management considers thers is no significant concamtration of the following risks a8 tha balsnce sheat data.
The procedures for assassing ta fisk ans also shown below:

5.1 Creiit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financiat foss to the Company if a customer o counterparty to 8 financial instrument fails o meat fa conwactual cbligations, and arisas principally from the loans and
advances to customers.

For eredit risk ing purpose, the Compeny consi idates al ok € crodit ik exposurs (such a4 individual obligor risk, sastor rik. Fepaymentrisk, ¢.),

‘The Company's portfolia is reviewed on  reguler basis for impairment provisions. There is a limited recourss through the Overdraft Multicurrency Agreamant batween the Company (Borowsr)
and Eurcbenk Cyprus Ltd, (Lender), which statos that the aggregate loss accrued by tha Cormpany (Barrower) in relaticn to s creditors defeulting under corresponding loans will not excesd the
lower of Eura 2.000.000 or, 1% (one percent) of the cutstanding smounts of corrasponding loans, calculated before tax and over the total term of the agrosment.

Lounyand advances
Loens and advi net of provisions for & T 4 fair vasa of loans snd advances represents the discounted smount of estimated fithira cash flows expectad to be received.
Xpect at determina fair vahie.

The Company tales on expostira 10 credit risk. which s the risk that a countarparty will be wnabla 1o pay amounts in full when dua.
Inpairment provisions ars provided where thers ia objectiva evidenoa that the Company will not ba abie 10 collect all amounts dua.

Siniffcantchanges i e econcray. o it heafh of  particulr indusy sepment it roprvsnts 8 cencentation i ho Company's prfli, coukdreal i videncs that is different from those
provided for atthe date.

‘Exposurs to credit risk is managed through reguler analveis of the bility of bormowsrs 1o mest interest and capital repayment obligations.

editrisk i al d in pert by cbtaining collsteral and personal gusrantess. The split ef portfolio of the Company by indusry ia datailed in below

The Companyhas no geographical exposure 1 markets other than Romania

Cradit monlioring

Tho Company is awara of the stats of the borrower's business and any chenge in its creditworthiness ot all tnes, a5 regular evalustion of financial statements and of the borower's business
operations are performed.

b
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes to the Financial Staterments es ot December 31, 2017
(ssmounts i EUR)

Credit risk (continued)

Cash and cash eenivalants
‘Thera e6s o restrictions on the availabllty of cash end cash equivalents, Thess are readily availeble.

Callatsral

The Company employs & range of policies end practices fo mitigate credit risk. Tho most treditional of tess s taking of security for funds advences, Which is 8 crnmen practics. The Cempeny
implements guldelines on the eccaptability of spasifio classas of coltaterat or credit risk mitigation. Tha prinoipal collateral typea fur loans ead advences ar:

- Mortgagaa ovar rasidontial propertias;

= Charges over business assety such 83 premises, lventory and scsounts resaivabla.

Longertam Mumllh‘dnlwwmmmmnlwm mortgege loans aro also secured, whila conmimer loeas to individuals ara generally unsecured. In addition. in order to
minimiza tho credit loss the Company will it 243007 o4 impainnent indisators are noticed for he relevant individust loms end sdvances.

Maxbuzm expesure to credit risk befors collsteral held or other credit exhanoements:

31-122017
Loans & edvanices to customers - principal outstanding® 305.392.898
Interest reseiveblo 23,467,634
Otaer recei L i [ 1453012
Lass: allowanos for impaimmant {2.000.000)
Net Loans and edvasnces ta custormers 318313,34
Other rocelvables (Noto 8) 2775269
Cash end cach squivalents 19.760.369
Total 350,849,182

123172016
Loans & advances to customers - principal cutstanding® 295,704,960
Tntorest recivable 12011485
Ot 10 loant ly four 1178508
Laaa: sllowance for imparment -2.000.000
Net Loans and edvance to customers 306895353
Other raseivablen (Neto 8) 4,119,547
Cath end carh syuivalents 6640.175
Total 317,688,078

{®) Loans and advances to customers ara after eny writs downa performad dus to imitad resoursa egainst borrowings, which for 2017 is Euro 27.967.121 and for 2016 ia Euro 18.073.114.

Thia writs down is countorbalanced by tha write-down of flnancing bomowings ftom Group compeny for the same smount (refer to nata 11).
Loans and edvances

A ot Docember 31, 2017 end 2016. leana end advances ero summerized as ollows:
31-12-2017 1213172016

Nelther past diuo nor impained 108,101,633 114453322
Past dua but not impaired 34500221 38,945,262
Impaired - individuaty ascssed 91485110 82534493
Impairad - eoflostively sssesssd 96.256.580 72962.275
Gross Lesns and advencas to Cestomers 33031354 30889538
Less: Allowancs for impaiment -2.000.000 £2000,000)
Net Loans and advances to customers 32831354 306895382
Tmpais ot i " vith Burchank Cyprus Lid® (11.145.752) (17,733,038)
Net loans and advances after mpelrments 317067792 2.162314

) Loen end edvances 1o customers ero 1o bs written down by this emount in the futuro 2gainst borrowings. dus to limited recourse guarantes (sse mote 1),

pwe

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Accountants N.V.

For identification
purposes only



ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING Ii B.V.

Netes to the Financial Statements 2s 3t December 31, 2017
(amounts in EUR)

5. Credit risk (continued)

8.1.2. Loans end advences (contintiod)

The wholesale end small business loans as at 31 December 2017 are covared by collaterals at 131% end 96%%, respectively (2016: 110% and 9%, respactively). Consumer loan are not
7 K lized a1 81% (2016: 101%),

Credit quality of foans and advances to customers

Loans and advances (o customers aro classithed as eher past dua nor impaired”, “past dus but aot impaired” and “impairsd”.

Leans sre reportad s “neither past die o imprired® wien 5o costustial payments ars in anvars sl thaw wre 1o ol indications of impainnent

“Past dua but no! impaired” categery includae loens with verdua by 8t day, but which are ot impaired unless spesifls information indieates o thg convary. This ls
lyviul!yvlnnbm:mhmhumm%d&ylMmhmmmﬂmmwmliwdmmmhnmwmwhllo-ulllllu
eategory. alihough net considered impained, the Company may recognizs an impairment provisicn.

“Impaired” loans that are individually maseased compriss wholesala exposures a3 well s small business loans which carry e individual impairment provision. All other rutail impaired exposures
carry a collactivo impairment provision

The avidenca considernd by the Company in dstrmining that there s objeative evidmos of impaiment is set out in Noks 2 Impaiment,

The tabies betow pressat the folal pross amount, representing e maximum exposina 1o credit risk gross of impaimment aliowanca, of losns and advances that are cisssified 23 non impained (i.8,
“meither past dus aor impaired” and “past dus but not impaired™ and thove classitied as snpared

() Loans and adwances netther past dise nor tmpaired

‘The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were naither past dus nor impaired at 31 Decamber 2017 aad 2016 was asasased by referancs 1o tha entity's own standard grading
system. The following information is based on that system:

supow _ sumonis
108.101.633 114,453,322
114453322

Accepaable- low risk
Total l“.lﬂllﬂl
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5.0, Credit risk (continued)

8.1.2. Lomms and advancss (contined)

18) Loans and advances past dne. but not tmpaired

Current

Past ducup to 29 days

Pact duo 30 - 89 daya
Past dus 90 - 180 daya
Pest duo mora then 120 days
Total

Fair value of collatoral

Current

Pest dua p 1 29 days

Pest dua 30 - 89 days

Paet dua 50+ 100 deyn
Past dua more then 180 days
Tota!

Falr vahus of collateral

{¢) Impeired loans ond edvences

ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Netes to the Financial Statements as at Decomber 31, 2017
(emouats i EUR)

Conmmer _ _ Mortgage _ _ Srmll business 31nzn017
1987617 23.759.259 248218 25995094
471,46 7.903.212 128211 3,502,885
2242 . - 2242
2461322 31662471 376429 34500222

- 24.737.298 3513717 25,088,675
—Comgmer _ Morigage  _ Small business 312016
4.519.880 24832410 286910 29,639.200
1.220.153 7.837.946 192.221 9.250320

& 35,743 - *

5740033 32726099 479,131 33899520

- 25,630,526 473788 26104310

(e 1) impeired loans end edvances collectively assessed

For collectively assassed accounts. loens erc treated as impeired besed on historical loss data

for groups of losns with similar characteristics. The collectively sssesed loans and sdvancus fo

customers bafora taking i tho cash flows from s prosnted befow:

31/1272017

Consumer Mortgage Tetal
Collctively assassed loens 3.087.811 66.597.3%4 96.256.579)
Fair value of collateral [ 57,528,729 83,117,389

uanons

Consumer Mortgage Total
Collactively asssssed losns 3.907,451 50.200.660 72.962.275)
Folr value of coltateral - 37,020823 53,525,266

pwe
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING 1i B.V.

Netes to the Financia] Statements as 8t December 31, 2017
(emounts in EUR)

5.1. Credit risk (continued)

8.1.2. Loans and advamcss {continsed)

(c2) impaired loans and advances individually assessed

For individually assessed eccounts, loans ars treated as impaired 23 s00n 23 thers o objective evidencs tat sn impainment foss has boun incurred, The criteria used by the Company to determine
thet thara ia objactive evidenca of impaimient includa:

~ known cash low diffiulties experinead by the borrower

= oventua contractusd payments of sither principel o iteeit

= breach of loan covenants or conditions;

— the probability that the romover Will enter bankupiey o wther financial rvorganization;

_ ing in ing by tn external agemcy

During 2017 the impaiment triggers and classification of eaposures has been ravised following integrtion of EBA concopts and categorics regarding ron-performing and forbome loans which
had an offect on the assessment of the small businass loans.

Tho individually sssessed loans and advancss 1o customers before aking mto consideration e ¢ash flows from collateral held ia presented helow. “The breakdown of the gross amount ef
individually assessed loans and advancea by classes ix;

31122017
Mortgags Srvall bustness Wholesate Tomt
individually asssasad losns . . 91455110 91,455,810
|Fair value of coliateral - - 120434462 llﬂw
3106
Mortgage Semall husiness Wholssale Total
individually assessed loans s - 82,534,493 82,534,493
Fair value of collateral . - 87.221.427 87221427

(d) Rapossessed collaterals
During 2009, the Company has repossesed collaterals amounting to EUR 104 thousand theough his agent zssigned for the administration of thess loens, Bancpost S.A, Thess collatorala are

recorded in the agent's books until the Company instructs otherwise. Untd such tims, the Company recognized o reccivable from its agent (at the auction valus of the collateral). m correspondence
with a reduction of the loen recervable.

During 2010-2017 thers were 10 reposassssd collateral.
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8.1, Credit rlsk (continued)

5.1.2. Lomns and advances (continned)

ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes ta the Financlal Statementa 23 ot December 31, 2017
(emounts in EUR)

{a) Conoaniratian of credit risk exmosure
Geographical Sector
The following down the C it exporu at their gr smounts, as categorized by the stors of ot
311272017
Loans and edvancea to customers:
Conmumer 13.401,122
Mortgage 194381313
Small businesses 30162627
Wholesaka 92.368.482
Cath end cash equivelents 19,760.369
Other Assoty 778,269
Total 234918
3120016
Loans and advancas to customers:
Conmmer 23,126,158
Mortgege 180,305,940
22928760
Wholssals 82,534,490
Cosh and cash equivalents 6640175
Other Assets 1.619.547
Total 317,155,070
Indusiry sector
The following table breaks down the Company's mein credit exporure at their gross camying emotmts. as categorizd by the industry sectors of our countarparties:
Conamarce end
services Private lndividusls _ Manufactaring Comstruction Other industries 3w2nen
Loans end edvences to customers:
-Consemer - 13.400122 - - » 13,8012
~Mortgegs - 194381313 - - - 194381313
- Small buscssss 13159021 . 4925647 2790613 9287346 30.162627
- Wholesale 6.927.810 - 10.406.360 36.360.205 38673608 92368.483
Cash and cash squivalents 19760369 . - - - 19.760.369
Other Assots 2775269 5 - - - 2775289
Teta) 12.622,169 207,782,435 15332.507 39150818 47960984 32848

pwec
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDINGH B

Notes to the Financtat Statesments a1 at December 31, 2017
(amoisnty B BUR)

&1 Credht riak (continued)

8.1.2. £oans and adveces (continited)

Commerce snd
sarvices Private Individuats _ Manufucturiog Constructlon Other indugtrics 3111272016
Loats and advancas o cusiontens:
~Conspmer - 23,126,138 - . - 13126458
- Morigage - 180,305.840 - - - 180,305,240
- Benall businorses 15,531,836 - 3,396,934 3410683 589,285 21928760
- Whoksaks 10,235,930 - 17.700.4H 54,530,067 &8.012 82534400
Cash snd cash oquivaionts 6,640,178 . . - 6,640,178
Other Assats. 1819347 1,619,547
Tatal )ﬁl}"éﬂ! 203,432.( m 21 nr!d!s 52, %75) 657&9’ dﬁ
O Fair valva of finvnetad wrsets and tabilines
T the fair 31 Deocember 2017 based on whesher the inputs fo the frir vah fole

a)Lavel |~ Fieancial instrumnonts measuted basad on quoted prices b active markets for identica fanenctal instruments that an entity can acoess ot the measurement date. A raries is sonsidered
xctive when quoted pricas £re readity and rogdicly available fom zn exchange, dasler, broker, indusiy group. pricing sarvica o ragulatory egency sad ceprasont acuslly and regulsrty ovcurring.
ensactions, Theso inchuls actively quoted debt instsments, oquity and dorivative bistrumants waded on exchingzs, as well as mutus| fnds and unitdioked product thet have regulecty end
frequently published quotas.

b) Leved 2 ~ Financial instmuinents measured using valuation tochiques with the fotiowing inputs: 1) quoted prices for siiler fnanclal Instruments in sctive mackets. ) guoted prices for identical

o similer financist msruments @ markets that ane not sctive, Hi) inpats other than quoisd prices that an: divestly or Wdirectly cbservable, mainly interest mics and yield curves cbsarvable at

sommonty quated tervls, forward exchangs ntea, ity price. et spruads und iplisd Vol obtnined o ntermaionalyrecognizad ekt dete providers and i) ey eho ioids
inputs which ace insi e

©) Laval 3 - Finzncial instruments messured u:m valuation techniques with xigmnam unobservabls i mpuu \w«m doveloping unobsrvable inputs, best taformation availebie is used. mshuding
o data, while at the same tima market participants” mciuds unquoted oquity instuments.

(@) Fuir wilue of financtal assets and fiabilitiey

The mr vaiue nttmu\ml us-u: is :srimmd using discounted cash flow modols developed inieuss by tha Company's mamagartent. Due 10 ihe 3ize end nawes of the company, ersating &

d thenefora thamadat in subject to cartaln limittions,

The following tablr prosomts tha carrying mmounts and frir vaiues of fnenciel xswts and Fabilitiza w.mea are not carried at fuic valua on the balanco diest, anelysed by tha kel i the fir valus
L y into which aach fair hinchded:

311272087
Lovell Levd? Leve 3
Financisl sasits
[Loans s sdvances o customers. . - 267,735,240 267,735,230 2833 5H
I Total fnancial assets
31/12720L6
Levelt Level2 Levd 3
Financiat assets.
Loans and advancas 1o customers - - 284323019 284,374,019 306,893,352
[Totat financis) assets }

Sorsitivtty analpsis an fatr value of fimncial assets and abilitos fmianbet tnirest rata = 0.5%)

311122017
Level } Levet2 Leveld Total fair vatsc
Financlal ssets
Loans xnd advances 1o cuskaners - - 266,396,564 266,396,564
 Total fnancial ansats
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B

Notas to the Financlal Statermats as ot Decerber 31, 2017
(amounts in EUR)

5.1, Credit risk (contlnued)

8.1.2. Loans end advences (continned)

The assumptions and methodologios undarlying the csleulation of fair vahues of finencial instruments not carvied et fiir value on the halanoa shest data ans in ins with thoss used 1o calculate the
fair valses for financial instruments corried of fair vahie and are a3 follows:

Losns end edvances to customens: for loans and sdvancas to customers quoted markst prices are not availabla 3 thens 200 Ro active market whers these mstruments ere traded. The fair vakues sre
estimated by dissounting Rutura cash flows over the time pericd they era expestad 1o bo rocoversd. using appropriats risk-adfusted rates. Loans are prowped into homoganous essets with similar
charactorlstics, as monltered by Management. mich o8 product, barowar tvps end delinguency satun, In ordar to improve tha sesurasy of the estimated valation cutputa. In estimeting futurs cash
Bowa, tha Group mekes assmptions o expested prepayments, product spreads end fiming of collatoral raatization. The dlscount rates incorporate inputa for expacted credit losses end interest
raten. 2 appropriate.

For other insnclel instruments which era short-term of re<priza ot frequant intarvals (cash, due to benks o), the carmying emounts regressnt ressonebla epproximations of fair vakiss.

The following tabls presents tha flnancial Habilitbes that have a ehort term maturity (less then | month) for which tha assimption is that the carrying amvount epproximates their fair value:

311122017 3171212016
Carying amourd_Fair Valee | _Corryingsmeust Faie Vol
Financlal Babilities
ings 306.964,704 306,964,704 281,595.473 281,595,473
Other Lisbilitien 4,177,486 8,172.4 4933,127 2933127
Totsl finenciel Labiltaties 318,142,190 315,142,190 296,528,600 286,528,600
52 Marlet risk

The Compsny takes on exposira to macket risk, which ia the risk that the fair velua or furure cash flows of a finencial instrument will fsonuste becausa of changes in market pricss. Marketrisks
erisa from open poslions bn interast rate, curmenoy end equity producta. et of which eno exposed to general nd spesific movements and chenges in the lovel of volasility of merk rates of prices
such ea foreign end equity prices.

52.1. Interest tate risk
The risk that futuro cash flows of a finencial nstrument will fluctuate becsuss of changes in market interest rates. Loan nesets and loan liabilities are undertaken back to back on tarms that both
nlﬂemhmavﬂc%ul}b«nh.mrﬂ:'lMlympmuhdbvﬁihhmudhmmimmiﬁvivn’*bldlmph interost rate.

2.2, Forelgn exchangs risk
Foseign curmcncy risk s the risk thet assets or liabitiies in foreign curmencios will fichiats in value dua to exchanps rate flachisticns,

52.3. Semsltivity snatysls

Tho sensitivity of tha Income Siatement is the effect of tho assumed chenges in forsign exchenges rates on the net kncome for oma yoar, Sansitivity anelysis wsed for monitoring mertt risk do not
represat worst casa sesmerio. Tha effect on the income statemant 83 & reault of paratie shit in yieM curve is n. An enalyels of th Compeny's sensitivity to en incroess or dacreass in FX rates
(assuming constant batanca shost position) s 0s follows:

Sensitiviy of Incoma Statemaent
322017 311272016

aabv(loss) galn/loms)
Sxchange
10% deproclation of finstionsl currency (EUR) over forsign cumrencies 13.466.700 12.659.805
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements os at December 31,2017
(emounts in EUR)

83, Liguidity tlsk

Tha Management considers that the liquidiey risk is limited sines the Group ensures availability of needed funds.

The table balow prosts tha cash flow payabla by the Company under financial Habilitiea by remaining contractual maturities at the balanoa sheet date. Tha amsunts gdisclosad in the tabl ere
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Contrarmal undisconnted cash flong
31/12/2017 311202016

Up to 1 month.
Bomewmgs from group companies 306,964,704 281,595,473
Interest payable 10 group companies 345,167 630,282
Otirer payablas TSNS 6802845

315142190 289.026.600
Towml:
Borrowings from group compenisa 306,964,704 281593473
Tateruat payabls o group companies 346,167 630.282
Orher payadles 2831218 6.502.048

218,142,190 289,020,600
54 Capltal memagement

‘The Conpeny's main objectives when managing capital, is to safeguard the Company's ability to continue 23 2 going concem 50 that it Can continua fo provide retums for shavsirolders and banefita
for oter ‘Tho Company i 10 comply with sy capital requirements st by the regulators.

Capial conutets of iastied and paid up capilal. shere premium and othet reserves. There have bean | changes in the Company’ of capital during the year

‘The capital of the Company is presented below:

3u12n017 31122016
Issued and paid-up capital 20,000 20,000
Share premium 11980000 11,980,000
Other reserve 24046085 17.084.713
Total equity 36,046,088 29044713
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements 23 at December 31,2017
(emounts m EUR)

6 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Compeny imates and on that affect smounts of essats and liabiliten within the next finencial yeer. Estimates and judgments ere coatinually evalusted snd based
‘on historical experience end other factors, inchuding expectations of futurs events that ers beticved 1o : The estimates nd ons that heva a significant
risk of causing a meteriel adjustment to the carrying smovnt of aseets and lsbiliies within the next financial year aro addrassed below,

a) Imputrment loxsas on loans ond advances

The Compeny reviaws it foan portfolios to azssss mpaimment at keast on a hall yearty besis. In determining whether e impaiment loss should be resorded in tha income statemiant. the Compeny
mekes fudgments es to whether thero fs eny observabla data indicating that thero 1 @ messurable decresss in the estimated fitura cash flown from 2 portlio of foens beforo tho decroass c2n be
identified wih en individusl loen in that partfoli. This evidenes mey mctuda observabla data indicating thet thero has bosn &0 adversa changs in the paymment status of borowers b & group. of
nationsl or local ecomomic conditions that coretats wih dofauits on s35sts i the group. Manegement uses estimatss besed on historical loss experinca for assets with credit isk cheracteristios 2nd
cbjectiva ovidencs of kmpsiment similar 9 thoss in the portfolio when seheduling its future cash flows. The methodelogy end assumptions used for estimating both the smount =nd timing of
fatura cash flown era roviewed reguterly to reduca tn between loss esti sctuel ko

An Ovendreft Multicurrency agresment dated July 11, 2008 betwezn the Company (Bomower) end Eurcbenk Cyprus Ltd. (Lunder) was eonchided. Thera is o imited recourse through the
Overdraft Multiourrency Agresment which states that tho aggrogata loss ecarued by the Company (Borrower) in relation t its creditors dafiutting undar comesponding loens will not axsssd the
lomo!EanOOOOOOul"-(mprolu)uflhmmmdin'mnnofuarqu\dhlhmmuhh)dhﬁnundmmckﬂ&mo(l\ll}hml

b Uncortsin tax posinion

‘The Company's uncsrtain tex positions ero reasesmeed by managament o tho end of exch ropenting period. Lishilitizs ara rosordad for incoma to: positions that ery datermined by manspeet e3
mors liksly then not 0 result in additional taxes boing lovied If the positions wera to bo challenged by tha tax wutharities. The asssssment ia bessd o tho interpretation of tax laws that have been
emacted or pubstantively enected by the end of the roporting period, and any known court er other rullngs on such ismon. Lisbilitlen for penelics, interest and teesa other then on incoma are
rocognized based on menagement's best estmata of the expenditura roquied to eatile the obligations at the ead of the reporting period.

) Deforrod incoms tax esset resogaition.

The recogaized defurmed tex: nsset represents incoma laves recoverablo through Ritere deductions from taxsbl profits, and s recorded fn the income satement. Defirmed moome tax assets arc
recorded 1o tha extent thel reskzation of e rolated tax banefit ia probsbls. The future taxable profita end the smount of tax: benefits thet aro probeble in the flfure are besed 0n & medivm-term
business plan prepared by end results theraafler. Tho business plaa is based on fons thet ere belioved to b :

d) Fair valua of finansial essets end lisbilitiea

‘The fair values of quoted iavestment in sctive markets ara based on current bid prices (financial assets) or offer prices (finencial Kabilives). If thers is no sctive market for o finencial mstumant,
tho Compuny establishes fair valua using velustion techniquas. Thess inchuds 010 uss of resent erm’s leapth transactiona. dissounted cash flow enalysis and other valuation techniques commonty
e by market participants. Tho valuation models reflsct current merkest conditions at the measremsent dafa which mey aot ba ropressntativ of markst conditions either before or efler the
messuremant date. As at the balanca shest deta, menagament hes raviswed its models 10 ansuns they appropristaty raflact current market conditons, including the relativa fiquidiy of the merket
end crodit sproads.
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7 LOANS & ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING ¥ B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as ot Decembar 31, 2017
{emounts in EUR)

___supmoir ___ 3wanote

Consumer loans® 13,401,121 23,126,158
Mortgage loans* 194381313 180,205,940
Semall Business Borrowinge’ Corporate loans® 122531110 105,463,250
“Total loans to clients - gross® 330,313,544 308,395,348
Less: allowanca for impaimnent (own risk) 2000000 2000000

328.313.544 306.895.348
guarantss with Eurcbank Cyprus Lid®* -11,145.752 17,733,038
37,167,792 289,162.310

yot chargad the limited

) Loans and advances f customers are after any write downs performed dus 1o limited ncourse against borrowmga, which for 2017 ia EUR 27.567.12) end for 2016 s EUR 18.073.114, This
write down ia counterbatanced by the write down of finencing borrowings from Group Company for the sama amount (refer to nots 11).

In the first quarter of 2017, ERB New Eurvpa Funding [t B.V. complated the sssignment of a portfolio in amount of 138 MIL EUR and a sala contract m amount of 12 MIL EUR.

#%) Loan and advances 1o customers ane 10 be written down by this smount in the bommowings, due to limited 1.
31121017 311212016
Movement in writs downs limited recourse:
Opening balancs 186,277,610 168,204,496
Writs downs performed during the year 27.567.121 18073114
Closing balsncs as ot year end 213.844.731 185.277.610
Currens Assess: 3inznen 31122016
Losn repayments due:
Upto | month 2229,990 2330343
13 months 3,364,778 20932882
412 months 79.303.456 42.928.049
26.898.224 66.191.274
3vian01T  S112n016
Nen-Current Assees:
15 years 32041836 73,581,429
Over § yoars 159373484 167,122,648
241415330 240.704.077

Toans besr interest &t | month or 3 month Euribor Libor pius a spread and according to the Master Recaivables Sals end Purchaso Agroemenia.

pwec

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Accountants N.V.

For identification
purposes only



x4

Notes to the Financial Statements es at Decormber 31, 2017

LOANS & ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

(emounts in EUR)

Movements in provisions in 2017 end 2016 for impairment of loans end interest recsivable ars:

Typo of loan:
Opming balanco as at January 1, 2017

Provision cherge * releass for the year (inohiding collection f223)
Disposal of loen portfolio

Other movements

Foreign exchanga bosa (gain)

Closing balanos 83 ot Decomber 31, 2017

Typ of boan:

Opening balenca as at January 1, 2016

Provision charga ' releass for the year (inchuding collection foss)
Dispozal of loen portfolio

Other movements

Forelgn exchanga losa (gain)

Closing balance es at Decembor 31, 2016

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Descrintion

Rezsivabls from repossessed ooliaterals
Other recaivablen

Reosivablen from sold koans

Receivablo from Eurobenk Cyprus L.

‘CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Deacription
Due from benks/current accounts
Do from banks/deposits placed with banks

Consumer Mortgege Small business Corporate
loans losns s loms Toul
600,665 1.315.704 83,631 = 2,000,000
(90.289) 101,568 (11,679) = =
1.417.672 71.952 - 2.000.000
s —
Mortgegs Small business Corporate
Joans Towl
1,554,429 422016 23,555 2,000.000
(953.764) £93.688 60,076 - -
600.663 1.315.704 83.631 -
== EAN
31zt 31122016
94713 97,248
60,906 1o
- 58,809
2619590 3951513
2.775.269 4.119.547
30T 311212016
14749853 2,106,364
5.010.516 4.533.811
19.760.369 6.640.175

Thero ere no restrictions on the aveilability of cash and cash aquivalents. Thess any readily availabla.

EQUITY

The Company's suthorized shers capital amounts to EUR $0.000 end consists of 90.000 crdinery sharea with a nominal vehua of EUR 1 each

As et Docsmbar 31, 2017, 20,000 sheres wero issued and fully paid-up. Th

tha Equity wo refer to the

Equity includad i this report

ERB New Europs Funding I B.V. ia fully eontrolied and owned by ERB New Eurcpe Holting B.V.. 8 wholly owned subeidiary of Eurobank Ergasias § A, a benk incorporated i Grosos nd

listed on the Athens Stosk Exchangs.
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BORROWINGS FROM GROUP COMPANY

Finsnciag borrowings from Burobank Cyprus Lid.

ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING [I B

Notes to the Finarcial Statements s ot December 31, 2017

(smacuntz in EUR)

‘Write-downs dug to limited recourss against loans and advancas to customers

311212017 31/1272016
334,531,825 299,668,987

27.367.121) ~18.073.114

306.944.704 281,595,473

An Overdeaft Multicurrency Agroansnt dated July 1L, 2008 barwam the Company (Borrower) and Eurchank: Cyprus Ltd. (Lender) was conohuied. The stribution of impaimmant on foans &
advanicss o barrowers ralates 1 the impainments that msasgament hava estmated on tha loen portibtio. Under the Overdeaft Mubisurency Agrommant the credit sk of the portiblio exaosding

es been adjusied on the (sncing borrowing.

EUR 1,999.348 is borm by

Cyprus Ltd, therefors this

According to the agresment the bomowings are repriced and renewed on 2 monthly bexis. Bomowings bear interest at | month or 3 month Euriboe Libor plus a spread and according 1o the
Multicurrency Agresment. Based on Facility Agresment, borrowings bear inferest at Euribor/Libor plus 8 spread for ceriain intarest poriods of up 1o six months until they are repriced

‘The berrowings arc matched with the loans end sdvances to customers (note 7).

INTEREST PAYABLE TO GROUP COMPANY

Eurobank Cyprus Ltd., Cyprus.
Repayments aro due within | moath,
OTHER PAVABLES

Payablen to Bancpost S.A.
Litigation provisions

Payables 1o Eurolife ERB Asigurari do Viata S.A.
Payables to sundry lawyers

VAT paysblo

Acorued expenses (PWC)

Other payables

INTEREST INCOME

Intorest incoms on loans and advances.
Interost rotated imcomo

Interest rolated fozs

INTEREST EXPENSE

Ttervat expense borrowings from group Company
Bank interest expenses

122017 3171272016
346.167 630,282
346.167 630282

311212017 31/1212016

6,387,954 3,319907

= 2,500,000

431.539 311582
32989 2,138

1329 .

- 30,000

977.498 619.251
7.831.319 6.802.845
tarviw ___wiesins
12994694 18316607
1,188,220 187,412
(2.560.330) ~1.312.334

11.622.384 19.161.663

11117-31/12117 11/16-31116
12579.742 18,607.469

19,166 32323

PO I
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16 OPERATING COSTS

Menagement. domicilisry snd acoounting foes
Occasionsl consuhancy fess

Non-deductiblo VAT

Legal services

Forced execution expenses.

Lirigations expenses

ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING Il B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements 28 at December 31,2017
(emousts in EUR)

Otther sorvias (wudit, velusnon, banking fos, posiags and travelling)

TAXATION
1 2017 end 2016, this item can bo detailed as follows:

Result befera taxation

Less: Foreign exchangs gain (lozs)

Losa: non- taxabls operating incomo

Taxablo profit

Statutory tax rata 20% over 200.000
Statutory tax rats 25% over remaining emount

Corporate Incoma tax current year
Effestive tax rats

The movements in the taxation ero as fllows

Opening batence
Estimata tax charpe for the ywer
Payments mede

Amouats refinded by the Tex Authorities
Closing belance

The nominal Corporata meome taxt in the Nathertends is 20% for the first EUR 200.000 end the remaining taxable result 25%,

1117311217 117163111216

70,000 70,000
155,79 42639

7186 71,768

191,787

167,731

275,582

706,690 7211
929665 892618

iy 1/1/16-31/12/16

7042472 10,802.389
(1,080.751) 495,106
5757321 -11,093.094
204,400 204,401
40000 40,000

1.100 1.10000

41.100 41.100

41100 41.100
0.58% 038%

31n2mnen? 31122016

418,238 458213
41,100 (41,100)
99887 142,603
{137.903) 141.478)
339.093 318.238
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING 11 B.V.

Neits (o the Financtal Statements as at December 31, 2017
(amonnts in EUR)

18 RELATED PARTIES

Partias ars conaiderad o b relatid ifone party has the ability porty o i it the other party in muaking finsncial or operation decixions.

The Compeny's immodiate paront and controRing entity is ERB Naw Europa Holding B.V..a wholly owned subshtiary of Burobank Ergasias 5.A. (tva Bark) which s listed in the Athens Swsk
Exchange.

Tr November 2013, lotion of the Bank's Bully covered by & Fihe Bank’s oedinary shares with voting rights
held by e HESF dusrensed from 35.41% 10 2.38%,

Despisa tha afbiemeationsd significant decronse of ks percsntage, tha HFSE b st considerd to have significant bflucncs over the Bank. Is particular, in the context of the Law 18642010, s in
forca, HFSF excrcises ils voting rights in tho Rtk Gerreral Assebly onty for desisons conceming tha smendraant of the Bank's Antieles of Assacistion, inchidlng tha fnsssass oc dezeass of the.
Bank's sapital or the grsnting of & comesponding nlthodwiw wiha ank s Board, dechions concenting the menpers, divisions, convarsiona, revivals, sxtension uf duration o dimsolution of the
Bank, the teasfor of assets (inchding th iring Approval by an krcreased majority as provided for b Company Law 2190-1930, In sddition, the Bank has
entered into 2 new Relationship Framowork Agrasmant (RFA) \nl!h m HFSFm 4 Decembir 2015 roplacing the provious ong, signad on 26 August 2014,

Thre relatad pastics cansidrsd o reporting purposes sempezs of Banepost 5.4, Burolifs ERB Asi S.A, Burolife ERD Asigurar da Viats §.A, Eurohank Privars Bank Luxambourg
$.4.. Eurobank Cypeds Lid, snd ERB New Europe Fundng I B.V. whieh aro catitos controied by Evsobunk Ergassa 5.
The refared party wanswctioers the Company ks ivofved i aro intuded in the Balancs Sheet and Income Statement and forther disclosed in thlt nate.

Anumber of it tered into with ies in the nomal course ol'lhe busmess. L {oans, deposits snd forel > i d acquisition of othet services.
& ding bak yearend, and income for the yeer are a3 folows:
Thareleted party i tothe can b specified as follows:
LT IULNLT 1116311216

Tnfereat axpense borrowings Eurabank Cyprus T12.598,908 1R 639,795
Bank foes Bencpost SA 20,621 29938
Expeasss relaling 10 indérest incoms on loans & sdvanoes Bancpost SA. 291,583 1,058,593
Expensas rakting o interest income on loans & agvences Eurolifo ERB insurence - 253,762
interast incoma Earobank Cyprus Lt 1816 -
Interest income Bancpost SA 2HTST 1353
Opersting exponses Eurobsnk Propenty Serviess SA Romsaia - (3333)

!lﬂ.)‘)hlml XII.MN'Q
The relsted paty tothe B Sh be gpocifiod a8 follows:

Y1137 11EIVINIE

Current assounts with baaks Bancpost 54 14647941 2,007,648
Quitrent accounts with banks Evrobank Cyprus 101,912 9,716
Team depuosits with other banks Bancpost SA 2,933,790 2457085
Term degosits with oiher baaks Eurobank Cyprus 2,076,726 2076726
Loins & advantes b custoniets (epass oniginstion fo23) Banepost SA . 65.524)
Othar receivables Bancpost SA 4T3 97248
Other receivabhes Eurobank Cyprus 36166 88,186
Term losns oat banks Eurobank Cypess Lid (307.283,438) ~282,225,739
Other payabhis to Group Company (6,448,589 3314833

Iopeinments not yot charged under the fimind recourss guarann with Eurobank Cyprus Lid

(1978
11145752 7.733.038
lzﬂ!z’s’-lli !261 Oﬂd”,
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING I1 B.V.

Netes to the Financlal Statements es at Decernber 31, 2017
(amounts by EUR)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Nooff balanca shest contractuel commitments or obligations, affecting the finencial iatements. have cccurred to dats,
OTHER INFORMATION ON GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Durmg the yest under reviaw the Comtpany did not have say emplovwss. Hence, it did not pay any wagss and rotated social security.

The sudit foes of EUR 32,000 (2016: EUR ises tha fess of i extemal suditor Pric ‘oopers
Acsountants N.V. for the stanstory sudit of he finencial statements,

Th ! i chargad ing to ottter serviess, tax or any other consulting services.
DIRECTORS

During the current end the pravious finencial yoor the Company hed four Managing Direstors, who received no remeneration during the curent financial yeer. The Company hes no Supervisery
Directors.

As per Jemuery 30, 2017, Mr. E.R. Janssanss hes rotigned es Managing Direstor of the Company. and s per sama dsto Mr. LP. Flstershamis hes besn appointed a3 Menaging Dirsctor of the
Company.

OTHER INFORMATION

POSITION OF EURCBANK GROUP
Macroeconemic environment

Gressa’s real ODP grow by 1 4% in 2017, according 1o the Hellenic Statstical Authonnty's (ELSTAT) first estimats from 0.02% i 2016, while the real GDP growth conssnists foresast for 2018
s &1 2.1% (companad t2 an official target of 2.5%). The unemployment raio n Desamber 2017 was 20.8%, based ca ELSTAT data (31 Desamber 2016: 23.5%) On the flzcal front, Gresce's
primery surphis for 2017 ls expoctad at 2,440 of GDP. according 19 the 2018 Budget data, outpurforming tha respective Third Esoncenic Adjustmant Program (TEAP) prisary balance terget of
1.75%. According to Beank of Oresss end ELSTAT dat tha curment acostnt deficit docrotsed 0t -0,8% of GDP in 2017 (2016:-1.1 %),

Grosos. Mllowing the conchusion of the TEAP second raview in June 20l7mdhleunqun1nhno('n€l.5hbﬂmmmﬁdl‘ﬂhﬂm!mhaam mstintions.
enM;olkypﬂ*l'o“ui!'ldmhwonlbmbdlﬂﬁmdhmﬂllmnhubvuﬂyloll which paved the way for the disbursement of the first sub-ranchio o€ $.7 bn f the
second half of Maroh ml.mmummaelmwum-:dhm.-uumonou-qnmpmmbyunm institutions on the clearenca of net
erears ead the unimpeded flow of e-auctions. On the back of th afbramentionsd positive avelopmenta, Grosea raturmed to tha finencial meskets through tha issua of'a € 3 ba five-yosr bnd ot o
M“J.ézs‘-mlllnly20!7(kfmhlm!hmluly20|‘)lﬂ|€lbnuvm-v-bmd-uyﬂdof!.!"mIFﬁl\lly}Ollmmofmbmdeuld for further
Habulity/dubt management and for the build-up uf a etato cash bulTr thet wisshd facifitats the county's market access aftar the end of the program i August 2018,

Tho completion of the fourth ead final review of the TEAP, whish willbs caied out by Jins 2018 according o the implomantation plan, en expested significant i in investmants (2018 Budget
catimate ot 11.4% compared t5 9.6 incroass i 2017), ead a forocassed sirong tourism reason ons for & flrther & n domestic ic activity in 2018, The deciar
implementation of tha reforms agreed in tha contend of the TEAP. the implementation of further debt relief meastires in ocondanca with 24 May 2016 Esrogroup decitions, the mobilzasion of
Buropeen Union (EL') funding 1o support domestis invistment ad job crostion, the attrastion of forelgn ead domeatic capital end tha adoption of e extrovert economic dovelopment model wil
fackitato the restoration of confidencs in the prospests of the Greek econcmy end the ferther of tha domastic esnomic enwi which 83 necessary canditions for tha ratum of
the country o4 strong end mustsinabla growth path

The mein risks end uncermintiss ere asscsisted with (2) thy possibla delays in tho implememtaton of the reforms’ esenda in order 1o mest e next targots end milestones of tha TEAP, (b) the
possibla delays 1 the sgresment of the post-program relation hetwoan Grosca and the Instinutioaz. (€) the Impact on the Jovel of coonontia sctivity end on tho atrastion of direct investments from
\’uﬂlulmdiou'nllnliry«h’edmnlnml'cdnndt‘lcmo(hlﬁ:\?,(dbﬂwlﬁhybmnw mvestments in the country, (¢) the timing of a full ER of restrictions in the frec
movement of copital and tha respsciive mpact on the lsvel of econcmic astviy, (f) the possibla slow paos of daposits inflows end’ or possile delaya b the effsctiva menagement of om.
performing exposurca (NPEs) 83 8 result of tha challenging macrosconomic conditions ia Groese end (g) th geopotitical condisions i the brosder region end the extermal thorks fhom o clowdoww
i tho plobal econceny.

Ligquidity risk

I sosordance with tha egrosment with the Buropesn partners the euthorith i o0 ing sufMiciont tiquidity in ing m. o1 long a3 g the
Em\wMllyM-&-h(uhl)m.mmmo('ﬁcmmmmv.Mlhmmﬂmwﬂhhﬂmiﬂ&num,m
Mwuwwmmhmhnumminmmmmmkmm«u‘u-um-mmd“uwummmhunwwm
mmnnmmmom.mmwumom»uunmumpnmmummndmmmmm.m.m-'ou-nd-m
end thua nosslorate the retur of deposlte. and it will positivel flaencing of the >

In 2017, tha Choup's deposlts inflows of ¢ 1.8 b (of which € 1.2 bn 1 Groscs). slomg with the incroaned market repos on covered bonda nd Grosk Treasury billa. a € 500 million eovered bead
330 10 [ntemetional end domestic investars end the asests delaveraging resulted In e signifioant desroass of the Bank's dependancy Bom tho Burosystem ta € 10 b at the end of Deosmber
2017, of which € 7.9 bn funding from ELA, (31 Docambar 2016: € 139 b, of whish € 11.9 bn om ELA) end the elimination of tha Bank's participation in tho sesond stroam of o Helletic
Republc lipuidity support program t the end of October 2017 (31 Dessmber 2016: bonds guarantoad by the Grosk Govermmaent of € 2. b). On 28 Fabrusry 2018, tha Esrosysien fanding
forthor dectined 0 € 71 b of which € 5.7 b from ELA.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING I B.V.

Nates to the Financial Statenents as ot December 31,2017
(amounts in EUR)

Selvemey rish,

The Croup mcnitors closely the i s Gresk faking #ato account ifs direct and indiroct oxposure 1 sovarelgn risk. A key priority i the active
management of NPEs, with e aim to suhstntially reducs ok wock in eccordance with the Bankc's opsrational targeis and taking advantags of the Group's intomal imfestructurs, the important
fegisiative changes and the external partnecships Dt hava tekan or are axpectsd to teks placs. As at 31 Dacember 2017, the Bank has roduced its NPE siock by € 24 ba to € 181 ba.
Sulperiomming Ba respective iniial M terget of € 18, bn.

In perallal, the Group recorded @ et profit anributable to sharcholders of € 104 million for 2017 (€ 185 millien, net profit fum continuing opsrations before nesructuring costs) on tha back of
higher et inferset end commission income from both Grock and intermational aotivities. I Gha comtienct of s stratagio plan. the Bank has underisken significant inksadvas towards the fulfiibnent of
the remaining commitments of the restnichuring plen and It procesded with the redemspticn of the prefirence shares by iswuing Tier 2 bonds at early 2018, Waich ccunt & it ota) capital sebequscy
ratio . The Group's Comman Equity Tier | (CET1) ratio siood at 17.9% a1 31 December 2017, whik the respective pro-fonma ratio with tha rademption of preference sheres/issug of Tier 2 bands
and the compltion of tha safe fransaction in Remeala would be 15.8% . The mpact of tha adoption of IFRS 9 cn Group's CET! 1 ot the ond of 2018, ssording 1o the Eunsiional armengemants
for the S-year phese in peniod, is estimated to b approximately 20 bps.

Oa § May 2018, the ECB announced the results o tha Stves Tust (ST) for the our Oreek syttemic banks, inclading Furctank. Based e fsdback resshed by th Smglo Supstvivery Macheniem
(SSM), tha ST outcome puinted to no copital shortfall and ne capital plan nesdad for Eumbank Brgasiis S.A. s a result of the earcies. Quing forwerd, he prima Brget remaing tha active
‘manegament of NPEs, with the aim 1o substuatially reduce talr sioske in ascordancs wikh the Bank's opsraticnal tacgets 163 taking avantage of the Group'a fntermal inffastruenurs, tha impertant

tiva changes and tha extemal partershios et have taken or aro oxpsoted to tka plada, Aa a1 30 September 2018, the Bank hes raducad tha uack of NFEy by € 2 ba sincs 3 Dacember
2017 1€ 16.1 ba Which compares 10 a ravised targst of @ 16 bo submitted 10 SSM in September 2018

Post balance sheet events

Dispesal of the Resmulan portfully of Bancpost SA

On |5 Seprember 2017, tha Burobank Ergasias S.A. atwanosd tat it hes entersd into nogotistions with Benca Trensiivenia with rogards 1o e scsential vals uf Bauspod 8.4, ERR Retad
Services [FN S.A. and ERB Leating IFN .. in Romania (Rommian disposal group). The atla was considered highly probable, therefise, 23 0f 30 September 2017 Romanian diaposal group wan
elasciffed 23 held for sala in is finencial statementa.

On 24 November 2017, the Evrobank Ergasias 5.4 announcad thal it hea reached an agresment with Danca Transilventa with regans 1o the abova sala, Following the taid agresment, ca 3 April
2018, Eurobank end BT concluded all the remaining sctions and frlfilled all the conditiony pressdent for tha complation f the tranalir of the shares beld by the Group s tha above companies to
BT

In eddition, in July and August 2018, the Romanian National Authority for Consumer Protection (ANPC) hes inposed two fines cn Bancpost $.4. in connestion with complaints rassed by corin
Bancpost S.A. knding clizats. ing loans which igcd by Bancpost S A t ERB New Bsrops Funding [T B.V. (NEF I (28 SPV in the Nethirlands
controlled by Eurobank) in 2008, Tha ANPC hes impossd [i1es on Bancpost 5.4, tomling € 68 thowsand, us i challemped tha capacky of NEF I ko acquire the fosn ceseivebles from Besgpost .4
and of certain aleged breachas of conmumer protection laws. Furthermore, the ANPC conetuded that paymants by the consssmers such es iateresss, fses, penaltic in refation to all ans ssigned 10
NEF I were illegally cashed in by NEF I for a peviod of fon yoars and should be reimbursad by Bancpost 5.4 Baniopost S.A. i in the process of challenping the ANPC minutes. The SPA for the
ke of Bancpost $ A. mentioned ahave between Eurobank Group md BT slso provides for an indamnity i respect of losses incured fom elaims made agsinst the Purcheser or Bancpost §.A. in
refation 10 loans and receivables of the above perimeter, The Group ia closely menitoring tha davelnsmants of all the above cases of Bancpost S A and i & the proceas of melyzing the potentisl

ffect its legel rights and ions, including thoss erising uader the SPA with BT
shost ffest the financial posttion of the Company as a8 31.12.2017.
: é
(X . mt
tmacis, o 12 30
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING II B.V.

Other information

¢t

Subject to the provisions under Dutch law that no dividends can be declared until all losses have been cleared, the other reserves are
at the disposal of the shareholder in accordance with Article 22 of the Company's Articles of Association.

Furthermore, Dutch law prescribes that any profit distribution may only be made to the extent that the shareholders' equity exceeds
the amount of the issued capital and the legal reserves.

Abpropriation of result

The Board of Managing Directors prop to add the net profit for the year to the accumulated profits. This proposed allocation of
result has been incorporated in the financial statements, and is subject to the approval of the General Meeting of Shareholders.
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